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Chairman’s Statement 3 Ji& 3t 3

On behalf of the board of directors, I present the
annual report of Winfoong International Lim-
ited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2007.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded

consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$312.3 million due primarily to impairment of goodwill
which was a once-off non-cash item as a result of the group
reorganization and the acquisition of Goldease Group. In the
absence of such impact, the Group’s results for the year would
have been profit of approximately HK$8.9 million.

DIVIDENDS

A distribution in specie of 1 share of Hong Fok Land International
Limited for every 1 share of the Company held was declared on 25
July 2007 and paid on 1 August 2007 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 25
July 2007. The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION, ANALYSIS
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group has completed a group reorganization
and the acquisition of Goldease Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Goldease Group”) on 1 August
2007. The Group has distributed the business of the holding of
the properties at 15 and 17 Magazine Gap Road in Hong Kong,
certain properties in the People’'s Republic of China ("PRC")
and an approximately 20.2% interest in Hong Fok Corporation
Limited ("HFC"). The Group has only retained the business of the
redevelopment project at 38 Conduit Road in Hong Kong and the
provision of horticultural services and is enlarged by the business
of the Goldease Group of the holding of certain properties in
Singapore.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i 3t %

Turnover increased by 12.1% which was mainly due to the sale
of properties of Goldease Group. The Group recorded net loss
of approximately HK$312.3 million in the year as a result of the

following:

() decrease in net rental income of approximately HK$4.7

million;

(i)  decrease in valuation gains on investment properties, net of
deferred tax, of approximately HK$4.3 million;

(i) impairment of goodwill on acquisition of Goldease Group;

(iv) decrease in interest expense of approximately HK$10.9

million; and

(v)  decrease in share of profit of an associate of approximately
HK$149.9 million.

Following the distribution of the property holding business at 15
and 17 Magazine Gap Road during the year, net rental income,
valuation gains and interest expenses has decreased. Share of
profit of an associate decreased as a result of the distribution of
interest in an associate.

As a result of the group reorganisation and the acquisition of
Goldease Group, goodwill of HK$321.1 million on acquisition
of Goldease Group has arisen mainly from the unexpected
fluctuation in the price of the Company's shares at the date of
acquisition. By reference to HKFRSs, the closing per share price
of the Company on date of acquisition was used as a proxy for
the fair price of the Company’s 900 million new shares, which
were issued as part of the consideration for the acquisition,
for the purposes of calculating the goodwill arising from the
acquisition. As the closing price of shares of the Company on 1
August 2007, the date of acquisition, was HK$0.475 per share,
goodwill of approximately HK$321.1 million was recognized
for the acquisition, calculated based on the fair value of the
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Chairman’s Statement 3 Ji& 3t 3

consideration and the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Goldease Group. The fair value of the consideration
shares was approximately HK$427.5 million, of which HK$45.0
million was credited to share capital of the Company and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$382.5 was credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company.

Pursuant to the impairment review of the goodwill arisen from
the acquisition, the fair value of the net assets of Goldease Group
was lower than the carrying amount of the cash generating unit
of the Goldease Group and accordingly, an impairment loss
of approximately HK$321.1 million was recognized. However,
the Board wishes to state that the recognition of the aforesaid
contributed surplus and the impairment loss as a whole would
not have material impact on the net asset value of the Group. In
addition, as such goodwill is a one-off non-cash item, the daily
operation and working capital of the Group are not materially and
adversely affected by such impairment loss.

In the absence of the impairment of goodwill resulted from
the acquisition of Goldease Group being part of the group
reorganization, the Group’s results for the year would have been
profit of approximately HK$8.9 million.

The net asset value of the Group per share as at 31 December
2007 was approximately HK$0.12 (2006: HK$1.26) based on
the 2,392,410,986 (2006: 1,492,410,986) shares issued. The
decrease was mainly due to the distribution in specie.

The Group will focus its resources on the existing properties. The
redevelopment of the investment property at 38 Conduit Road has
commenced as planned and is expected to be completed by the
end of 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i 3t %

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group’s funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies
from the information disclosed in the Group’s latest annual report.
The Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducted its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars or Singapore dollars. The Group aims to utilize the
fund for transactions that are denominated in the same currency.
The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered significant,
no financial instruments for hedging purpose were employed.

The Group's working capital requirements are met by sales
proceeds of development properties and committed undrawn
credit facilities. The year-end gearing ratio was 52% (2006: 25%)
based on bank loans less cash and bank balances to shareholders’
funds including minority interests. The increase in gearing ratio
was mainly due to the change in the Group’s assets and liabilities
as a result of the group reorganization. The Group's borrowings
are arranged on a floating rate basis. As at 31 December 2007,
the outstanding bank loans amounted approximately HK$150.8
million. These loan facilities were secured by the Group's
properties.

The following is the maturity profile of the Group's bank
borrowings as of 31 December 2007:

After 2 years but within 5 years 100%

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong
support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 February 2008
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Notice of Annual General Meeting JB 338 45 K €5 8 %

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
the Company will be held at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong on 25 April 2008 at 11:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

(1) To receive and consider the statement of accounts and the
reports of the directors and the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2007.

(2)  Tore-elect retiring directors and to fix their remuneration.

(3)  To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors

to fix their remuneration.

(4)  To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  "THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to
repurchase shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the
Company and that the exercise by the directors of the
Company of all powers of the Company to purchase
shares of the Company subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws, be and are hereby generally
and unconditionally approved, subject to the following
conditions:

(@)  such mandate shall not extend beyond the
Relevant Period;

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of
the Company to be purchased by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of passing this Resolution;
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(c)  for the purposes of this Resolution: () BARZERME :
“Relevant” Period means the period from the [EFEEME ] FEhBARR
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is EEAHBEETI =&F
the earlier of: ZxFHERIE B ¢
(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general ()  ARETERREESF

meeting of the Company; REHERK

(i) the expiration of the period within which (i) BEAQRMAKESR
the next annual general meeting of the EERER 2 EBIR
Company is required by the bye-laws of ERABRARRTE
the Company or any applicable laws of RERBFRE 2HR
Bermuda to be held; and B &

(i) the revocation or variation of this (i) AAFIRRERRA
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the g AT RRZERRT
shareholders of the Company in general HAENARNRBERZ
meeting.” A

B. “THAT there be granted to the directors of the B [BREKERTARFNESS

Company an unconditional general mandate to issue, — AR IR AT BB R IE AR

allot and deal with additional shares in the capital of RAEIRAFR 2 BEINRAD - Wk

the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements RIS - sk RIE AR
and options including warrants, bonds and debentures (BERKERE  BEFRUTEKR

convertible into shares in respect thereof, subject to BrzARIES) HEX T

the following conditions: {ER PR 1) -

(a) such mandate shall not extend beyond the (a) BEETHEEZEHHME
Relevant Period save that the directors of the LATE - MEARRBIEEA R
Company may during the Relevant Period make BEBEE A AT A IR 3k
or grant offers, agreements and options including BREBBEERETE
warrants, bonds and debentures convertible into ZERNZEE  HER
shares which might require the exercise of such ERE (BIERREE &
powers after the end of the Relevant Period; HRATEBmR G 2 EH)




(c)
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the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally, to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to
(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion
attaching to any warrants issued by the Company
or any securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company; (iii) any issue of shares in
the Company under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to shares; and (iv) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of
a dividend on shares in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company in force from time to time;
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of passing
this Resolution and the approval granted shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

"Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of
Bermuda to be held; and
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(i) the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general

meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements

(i) ANRBBRREBRER
T LEUEBRERR
HRERARERZ
H o

(R EEEARRESS
BEZHEA - MRIEE
EREd SR ER IR NS
Atz EAREE
B 15 i LE I BC 5 B 2 52
& (RS RTWERE - %
B RREEANIMNE 2 E
RIEMRAZEERE

HEMEFRRX DR E
ZREISEEZER K
REAEFEAAER B K
RRBREE 2V B&

or having regard to any restriction or obligation
under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, or in any territory outside, Hong

Kong)." EMETURERBER
BE) e |
C. “THAT, conditional upon the passing of the C. [BEMNUALAEEBERER

EEE)ARFIRBRRBIALA
BRBRRBE AR R RAS 2%
MEELBANALRREES
RIBRARYE DA £ BIRRFRZE T A
BB A IR SR IR R BB
ZARBBEAEELERE - |

Resolutions Nos. A and B above, the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the
Company which are repurchased by the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the Resolution
No. A above shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may
be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Resolution No. B above.”

By Order of the Board AEFEEMm

Winfoong International Limited HKEERERAT

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick e

Chairman fER ki

Hong Kong, 29 February 2008 /R ZEENF-_A=1+hHA

10
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1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to 1. NEEEFELERRERAE EREZRE -5
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a AZR—MNARRHEEIRERE - RRHBAA
member of the Company. RAEZ IR -

2. Concerning Resolution No. (4)B above, the directors wish to state that 2. MALEWBERZRME  EFLERE -
they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of the Company BRI AT BB AT AR AR AR D - EAR
but approval is being sought from the members as a general mandate for AEREAMERINARARES LHRA
the purpose of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock (T EMHREN]) - SRRRIER T — M5 -

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

3. The translation into Chinese language of this notice is for reference only. In 3. RBEZHRXEATEHSE - WHEHE - #§
case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail. NEX R EAE -

11
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Corporate Governance Report &% G H

Year ended 31 December 2007 # % - EELEAF H="+—HILEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company is committed to raising
the standard of corporate governance within the Group in order
to enhance the transparency in disclosure of material information.
The Board strives to implement the best practices embodied in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code") as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules where feasible and as far as

practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required

standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of seven members who have appropriate

corporate experience.

Of the seven directors, four are non-executive. Three of the non-
executive directors are deemed to be independent by definition of
the Listing Rules.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material transactions
that require the Board's approval which include mergers and
acquisitions, divestments and major capital expenditure.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group's
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the Company Secretary. Management provides the Board
with reports of the Company’s and the Group's performance,
financial position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the
Board at each Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent
professional advice in furtherance of their duties, at the
Company’s and the Group's expense.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick is both the
Chairman of the Board, as well as the Group’s chief executive
officer ("CEQ")/managing director. Given the size and that the
Company’s and the Group's current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time, the need to separate the roles of the
Chairman and the CEO if the situation warrants it.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under Code A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term although
they are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting under the Company’s Bye-laws and
except for the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director
of the Company, each director is effectively appointed under an
average term of three years.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board does not have a nomination committee as the Board
has been relatively stable with low turnover in the past few years.
However, if the need arises, the Board as a whole, will decide on
the nomination and appointment of new directors.

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on page 28.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according to
their performance and working experience. On top of basic
salaries, discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to
eligible employee by reference to the individual’'s performance.
In addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

Under Code B.1, a remuneration committee should be established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. A majority of the members of the remuneration
committee should be independent non-executive directors.

The Board has not established a remuneration committee. The
Board conducts an informal assessment of the individual director’s
contribution. No director decides his or her own remuneration.
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in note
7 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors. One of the committee members has financial

management experience.

The audit committee has full access to and co-operation of
the management. The committee also has discretion to invite
any director or executive officer to attend its meetings and is
assured of adequate resources to enable it to discharge its
function properly. CCIF CPA Limited, the external auditors have
unrestricted access to the audit committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The audit committee meets periodically with management and the
auditors of the Company to discuss and review:

(a)  the annual and interim financial statements to shareholders
before submission to the Board for adoption;

(b)  the Company’s and Group’s accounting policies and system
of internal controls;

(c)  the audit plan of the Company's external and internal
auditors;

(d)  the results of the external and internal auditors’ examination
and their evaluation of the Company’s and the Group's
internal control system;

(e)  the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(f)  the assistance given by the Company’s and the Group's
officers to the external and internal auditors; and

(g) interested person transactions.

Under Code C.3.3, the audit committee should have the duties
to be primary responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor.

The recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor of the Company is made by the Board to
the audit committee for approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT BOARD AND HREFHEREBRAGaRLE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS Wi 85

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to FANESETHRETERE  RIARQFER
review the Company's and the Group's operations and financial SEyKERMBEE EELEEESY
results. Details of attendance of the directors at the Board HREZZESRRAIMETHT o

meetings and audit committee meetings are as follows.
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Independent board
Board Audit committee committee
B2g ENZER BUESZEE
Number of Number of Number of

meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance  meetings Attendance

EERE  HERE  SERE  HRRE  GERE  HEAR

Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick ERREE 10 10 2 N/A 1 N/A
[Chairman of the Board) (E58%R) TER TEA
Mr. Cheong Kim Pong EoBAE 10 10 2 N/A 1 N/A
TER TEm
Mr. Cheong Sim Eng EREEE 10 10 2 N/A 1 N/A
TER TEf
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mdm Lim Ghee " &R 10 4 2 N/A 1 N/A
TiEA TR
Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng LY 10 N/A 2 N/A 1 N/A
(alternate to Mdm. Lim Ghee) (HERL BAES) TiEm TiER TR
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic REBLE 10 5 2 2 1 1
[Chairman of audit committee) (BnZBexRE)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee o fEh e 10 5 2 2 1 1
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BABEE 10 5 2 2 1 1
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2007,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
32.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2007, the auditors of the

Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$629,000 for audit and audit related services (2006:
HK$444,000), HK$39,000 for tax services (2006: HK$18,000) and
HK$402,000 for other services (2006: HK$55,000).

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of
internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group's system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,

the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2007 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the

shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
35 to 147.

DIVIDENDS
A distribution in specie of 1 share of Hong Fok Land International

Limited for every 1 share of the Company held was declared on 25
July 2007 and paid on 1 August 2007 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 25
July 2007.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
below.

EFeENRERE_TZELF+ A
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RESULTS B
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_B=1+—-HLEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EELE —ZZEERF ZETHF —ZENF —ZEE=F
(restated)
(&)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TART FER TAERT FET FTERT
Turnover BER 29,339 26,169 128,349 46,441 46,692
(Loss)/profit before BREUAT (B518),/
taxation gl (311,249) 154,587 140,306 547,386 (38,499)
Income tax FiSHT (1,021) (4,055) (28,244) (93,025) (1,533)
(Loss)/profit before Ret DB R RS
minority interests Al (&518), /& 7F (312,270) 150,532 112,062 454,361 (40,032)
Minority interests DHREER - - 3,069 79 (1,094)
(Loss)/profit attributable PR (G
to shareholders (E518),/ & (312,270) 150,532 115,131 454,440 (41,126)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

RERE - U B A BB 23

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EELF ZZEXRF ZZERF —ZENF ZBE=F

(restated)

(EE5)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTERT FERT FET FAERT FTERT
Total assets BEE 449,979 2,641,002 2,406,180 2,397,915 1,831,110
Total liabilities maRE (169,330)  (756,712)  (713,620)  (817,441)  (603,446)
Minority interests VYRR - - - (3,052) (3,159)
Net assets EEFE 280,649 1,884,290 1,692,560 1,577,422 1,224,505
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FIXED ASSETS AND PROPERTY HELD FOR

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out

in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated summary statement of
changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2007, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$148,392,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$64,000 (2006: HK$56,700).

Dl 5 B A H R B IR 2 %

REBEEEE 2 S B BEN M mERM
13

JBEAR
FRAREBRAZ S EFBERSEH ZIER
BRI TS RER 5 26 ©

5 S0 Dk It
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RRB AR HIRZRA IR B JE B & ¥ X
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i i
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W 43 kil i
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 48% (2006: less than 30%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to 41%.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 40% (2006: 51%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
31% (2006: 12%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had

any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:—
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Cheong Kim Pong
Cheong Sim Eng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:—
Kan Fook Yee
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:—
Lim Ghee
Cheong Hooi Kheng (alternate to Madam Lim Ghee)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Cheong Sim Eng and Mr. Kan Fook Yee will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of

them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
At 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of

directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations as
required to be disclosed under and within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") were as
follows:-

(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY:—

O RS R
EHNEISRIT Y RRBEAGERIEE
EELWEARARTLFTHARAR—F
PO 7 S B 1 OREBRME IR 5D T 4% 1E 2 R
BaK -

W Z R
RZZEZLF+-_A=+—H EEKEZ
THRABRARE RHEEBE QG ZKkH - 18
AR REHF EEREESLBEED
([BHREEGE D EXVE 2 R E RIRILA
THREZERRAENAT © —

() AL F By Bt BBy 2 M AT —

Type of interests and

number of shares held

BRI R AR #E

Name of director Corporate Family Total Percentage
e AT N #z B
(Note (a))
(HIEE (a)
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick B2 1,502,645,787 3,397,000  1,506,042,787 63%
Cheong Kim Pong Bk 1,502,645,787 - 1,502,645,787 63%
Cheong Sim Eng frpale 1,502,645,787 - 1,502,645,787 63%
Cheong Hooi Kheng EE 1,502,645,787 2,000,000  1,504,645,787 63%
(Note (b)) (P5E (b))
Notes: FiEE
(a)  These directors were deemed to have corporate interests in the (a) HRZEEFEREFARAEIERR

shares in the Company by virtue of their beneficial interests in the
shares in Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The 1,502,645,787 shares represented
the same interests and were duplicated amongst these directors.

(b) Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Mdm. Lim Ghee.

REEEARAD(IBEEE]D 2K
DR MERRHFEARARG ZA
AIMERS © 7% 1,502,645,787 R A% 17 7Y 5
Az MEXSTEECMEESR
5l o

(o) EBHZEIAMBELLZEEEE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(1)  LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION — HFC

w2 AR (H)
(i) R—HBEAR—BRHEEZRNZ
i

Type of interests and number of shares held

BEEIRAFERNEE

Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other Total Percentage
EENA A E AT Hith B At

(Note (a))  (Note (b))

(MizE(a))  (FEE (b))
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick SEX 5,679,454 1,237,830 104,058,803 133,469,600 244,445,687 37%
Cheong Kim Pong EeE 2,829,178 553,300 104,058,803 133,469,600 240,910,881 37%
Cheong Sim Eng fgotd 68,699,300 227,700 31,263,663 133,469,600 233,660,263 35%
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH 10,489,000 - - 133,469,600 143,958,600 22%

(Note (c)) (FaE ()
Notes: B3
(a) These shares were beneficially held by a number of companies in (a) ZERNHZEEE AT Eal®
which the directors had beneficial interests. HARERESR -

(b) These shares were beneficially held by a company in which the (b) HEBRNDBZSEEHGRIEFEEZZ

directors had deemed interests.

(c) Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Mdm. Lim Ghee.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, that were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

—HAREDES ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share option scheme, further details of
which are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and "“Share option schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company's directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors have any interests in
competing business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2007, the following persons (not being directors
or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following
long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

Yol e A it 840
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T RESEZEBIFRRD T AR T
LRI FE RS AR D B S AE ] E A A BB 2 iR
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AR B AR

BT R R S0 T REEE SN - BEMATSIAR
FREFRETHREY - AR FRHE
HEARATOT RHHEMEBEA - 8B
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oA BT R A

RAFEIEREENEAEEBRBEF ZE
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EZUBH B I Al A - 2 B 2 (1)
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Number of shares held

%,
=
ta
5
l¢]
-
=5
c
g,
g
HE
B
af
a
>
|

PR A
Note Direct Indirect Total Percentage

Name £ Firet B ik wm Epd
HFL International Consortium HFL International Consortium

Limited (“HFL") Limited ( [HFL] ) 1,455,202,784 - 1,456,202,784 61%
Hong Fok Enterprises Limited EBRESBRAT

("HFE") (MEEES]) (i - 1,455,202,784 1,455,202,784 61%
Hong Fok Investment Holding EEERAR([ER])

Company, Limited ("HFIH") (ii) 47,443,003 1,455,202,784 1,502,645,787 63%
Hong Fok Corporation Limited BREXERAA

("HFC") (MEREX]) (il - 1,502,645,787 1,502,645,787 63%
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. 285,312,566 - 285,312,566 12%
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited 136,000,000 - 136,000,000 6%

B &E -

Notes:

(i) HRBRERESHAEZEMBRARHFLZ#
@ BERESEAARFDHTRAZER
WA AEHFLETHES &R -

(i) HFE was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly-owned
subsidiary, HFL, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue of

HFE's interest in HFL.
(ii) HRBEEFEE2ENBRRIREED 2B

@ BOSREAARRDRITRAZEGELE
WEAEBRBEEZMEEEMRR - LI - 3B
BEERBAEARBEBEITRALN 2% 2 -

(ii) HFIH was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly-
owned subsidiary, HFE, did in the issued share capital of the Company by
virtue of HFIH's interest in HFE. In addition, HFIH was directly interested in

approximately 2% of the issued share capital of the Company.

(i) HARBEREEFAFEZEWNBARBEZE
@ BSREEREAARFDHTRAZER
AR A EERAEA EER -

(iii) HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly-owned
subsidiary, HFIH, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue of

HFC's interest in HFIH.
BEXHIWEEN R_ZTEZTtFE+_-A
Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the =t— B BRAQRFARERFLBEED
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as B3GR AEMFE 2 ECMATLE -
having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying BHMATRNARRLZBAD RABBIRAD - %

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2007. BERmESKE -

26




Directors’ Report 3 35 €7 # {7

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no significant event subsequent to the balance sheet date
as at 31 December 2007.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS
In November 2005, PKF resigned as auditors of the Company.

Appointment of CCIF CPA Limited as auditors of the Company
was approved in January 2006.

CCIF CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 February 2008
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DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 58, is the chairman and

managing director of the Company. Mr. Cheong is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed as a director of the Company in
1996. He has over 35 years' experience in property development.
He is a director of the Group’s ultimate holding company, Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC").

Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, aged 65, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Cheong joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He has over 44
years' experience in construction management and real estate
development. He is a director of the Group's ultimate holding
company, HFC.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 47, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He
has over 22 years' experience in the construction industry. He is a
director of the Group’s ultimate holding company, HFC.

Mr. Kan Fook Yee, SBS, aged 71, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company. He
is a barrister at law as well as a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. He was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 1998. He
is also a representative of the National People’s Congress of the
PRC.

HHE

SRR LE BFELTN\R  AAREEHR
EFRKE - EBRETDVANSHMASRE
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic, aged 61, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has also
been admitted as a solicitor in England, Australia and Singapore.
He joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 1996. He has over 35
years' experience as a solicitor.

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 58, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of
the Company. He joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Social Science degree. He has over 28 years’ experience
in corporate restructuring, corporate finance, capital markets,
direct investment and asset management. Mr. Chan held senior
positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and fund
management companies.

Madam Lim Ghee, aged 96, is a non-executive director of the
Company and the senior manager of public relations of the Group.
She joined the Group in 1991 and was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in 1996. She is a director of the Group's
ultimate holding company, HFC. Madam Lim Ghee is the mother
of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, and
Cheong Sim Eng.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Tsui Yeung Kun, Andrew, aged 52, is the director of the

property development division of the Group. Mr. Tsui graduated
from Christian Brothers College in the United States with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Economics. He
joined the Group in 1995 and has over 6 years' experience in the
management of investment funds and 11 years’ experience in
equity research and stock broking activities in Hong Kong. Mr. Tsui
is Mrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick’s brother.

#A (4
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 35, is the director of the

business development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and has
over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 7 years’

experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 34, is the director of the
project management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over 3 years’ experience in the private
equity field and 3 years’ experience in project management.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard are
sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 53, is the general manager of
the Group. Ms. Cheong graduated from Armstrong College of
Berkeley in the United States of America with a Bachelor of
Science degree. She joined the Group in 1993 and has over 22
years’ experience in the planning, organising and control of office
administration and personnel management.

Mr. Cheong Aik Yen, Roy, aged 42, is the senior manager of
business promotion of the Group. Mr. Cheong graduated from
Western New England College in Massachusetts with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He joined the Group
in 2002 and has 3 years’ experience in the merchant banking field.
He is the personal assistance to directors of the Group’s ultimate
holding company, HFC. Mr. Cheong is the son of Mr. Cheong Kim
Pong.

HBAE AR (#)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 54, is the financial advisor of

the Group. Ms. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration from the California State University,
Hayward and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chaminade University of Honolulu. She joined the Group
in 1991 and has over 26 years' experience in the construction
industry. She is a director of the Group’s ultimate holding
company, HFC. Ms. Cheong was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company, alternate to Madam Lim Ghee, on 12
January 2005.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng are sisters
of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Cheong Sim Eng.
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CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

20/F Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Winfoong International Limited (the “Company") set out on pages
35 to 147, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 February 2008

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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Consolidated Income Statement 5554z

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

S$Z
>
z
g
|l
44
eV'
il
#
H

(Ui TTAHE)
2007 2006
Note —ERtE “ETRE
BiyzE HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TR
Turnover L 3 29,339 26,169
Cost of sales SHERAR (16,793) (8,743)
Gross profit E7 12,546 17,426
Valuation gains on investment property BEMEER K 13 14,173 20,963
Other revenue Hftliras 4 302 309
Other net income HABAF58 4 1,415 1,969
Operating and administrative expenses LERTHAY (33,218) (39,776)
(Loss)/profit from operations & (F1B) /%7 (4,782) 891
Finance costs RMERA 5(a) (13,490) (24,374)
Share of profit of an associate [ElE—REE AR 287 28,145 178,070
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZRESSE 14 (321,122) =
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBiA (B518) /%A 5 (311,249) 154,587
Income tax Pk 6(a) (1,021) (4,055)
(Loss)/profit for the year KE (B8) /&7 (312,270) 150,532
Attributable to: DT RELL
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAERFAA 9 (312,270) 160,632
Minority interests PYRFE S - =
(Loss)/profit for the year AE (FB) 87 (312,270) 150,532
Dividend IR E 10 1,731,047 -
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (5E) /B 11
Basic ER HK cents (16.70) 84 HK cents 10.097%ll
Diluted B n/a  HKcents 10.0278(l

2FEN147T BB ST BHRE 2 —

statements. 285 °

i

The notes on pages 42 to 147 form part of these financial

okk
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 435 & e

As at 31 December 2007 3 —EEFLFESf - H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TLFHE)

ik

2007 2006
Note —ETLF —TER
iz HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTAT THET FHET FAT
Non-current assets FREEE
Fixed assets Ehay-3 13
- Investment property —REME 273,320 1,994,320
- Property held for future —BEERRBEE
development 2% - -
— Other property, plant and — Bz - BEK
equipment B 3,676 4,685
— Interests in leasehold land —REERNET
held for own use under RKEBRZEE
operating leases T2 R 452 464
277,448 1,999,469
Goodwill EES 14 - -
Interest in an associate N—RE SN T 2R 16 - 612,771
Pledged bank balances HHRIRITETT
and time deposits K E BifE R 20 10 912
Other financial assets HitemEE 17 2,534 2,600
279,992 2,615,752
Current assets MEEE
Inventories BE 18 160,965 12,728
Trade and other receivables BoREMBYEE 19 3,529 8,097
Tax recoverable A E IR 25(a) 8 83
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEY 20 5,485 4,342
169,987 25,250
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B REMEMNRE 21 11,557 22,305
Bank borrowings HRITE 22 - 81,891
Tax payables e AR IR 25(a) 856 =
12,413 104,196
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE (BE)F4E 157,574 (78,946)

36
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As at 31 December 2007 3 —EEFLFE L H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)

2007 2006

Note —EELE —TT
PiEE  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FHT FHL FHT

Total assets less current

liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings

Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company

Minority interests
TOTAL EQUITY

BEERRBER
437,566 2,536,806
FrREBa’E
RITEH 22 150,829 396,234
RERZ—H
MBRRZER 30(b) 302 =
EEWA - 5,582
EIERIEEE 25(b) 5,786 250,700
156,917 652,516
EEFME 280,649 1,884,290
RAR @i 26(a)
B 119,620 74,620
{1 161,029 1,809,670
RARIRERTEANE
1hREB%E
280,649 1,884,290
DEBRRER - -
O 280,649 1,884,290

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 EFeRN T NEF_A=-thBHIERE

February 2008. REFEE o

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong

fER K EeE

Director Director

EE Ea=a

The notes on pages 42 to 147 form part of these financial FA2E 47 B2 BRI ST BT 2 —
statements. 5 o
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Balance Sheet &y £ i &

As at 31 December 2007 3 —EEFLFESf - H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll TaHE)

2007 2006
Note —ETLF ZTTRF
PffzE  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TER FHET FAET
Non-current assets FREERE
Investments in subsidiaries KB RRZIZE 15 1 1,418,163
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E e KR 19 209,747 230,813
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 20 7 12
209,754 230,825
Current liabilities EJJ ={i=
Trade and other payables R E A FERTERIR 21 (1,260) (401)
Net current assets RBEEFE 208,494 230,424
NET ASSETS EEFE 208,495 1,648,587
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PR 26(b)
Share capital [N 119,620 74,620
Reserves i 88,875 1,673,967
TOTAL EQUITY s 208,495 1,648,587
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 EEeR_TEN\F_A-ThLBEMERK

February 2008.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Director

EF

Cheong Kim Pong

Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 42 to 147 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &7 & 0 22 5% ) 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB IC7HE)
2007 2006
Note —EELF ZTER
B HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FiET THET FAT FAT
Total equity at 1 January R—A—B2RE=E%E 1,884,290 1,692,560
Net income recognised directly HERESTER
in equity: ZUWAFEE
Exchange differences on translation &GS & A 7]
of financial statements BB i ZE X,
of overseas subsidiaries =8 26 5,570 (162)
Change in fair value of available- AEEERSFATE
for-sale securities 2% 26 380 260
Share of movements in reserves FEMRER & A7)
of an associate REEE 26 6,226 41,100
Net income for the year recognised ~ FEAEERERT
directly in equity RN FEE 12,176 41,198
Net (loss)/profit for year RNERFFEE (312,270) 150,532
Total recognised income and FREBRZBA
expense for the year kL A% (300,094) 191,730
Attributable to: LA e
Equity shareholders of the Company N TS AL (300,094) 191,730
Minority interests DERR RS - -
(300,094) 191,730
Distribution in specie BNk 26 (1,731,047) -
Movements in equity arising from ERAXZMESEZ
capital transactions: VAR A 243 2 IR 4
Shares issued for the acquisition of ~ YEEFI B A
subsidiaries BETRG 26 427,500 =
Total equity at 31 December R+=—A=t—-Hz
BRER 280,649 1,884,290

The notes on pages 42 to 147 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement £ 5Bl £ a3

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

é%
=
5
g
®
&
%4.
o
g
e
AR
HE
=)
B
a}
bt
>
a

(LB ICHHE)
2007 2006
Note —EELE ZTTR
PitaE HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Operating activities R
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B518) 5 F (311,249) 154,587
Adjustments for: KA
— Valuation gains on investment —REMESE
property e 13 (14,173) (20,963)
— Revaluation (gains)/losses —EFZEMH W),/
on buildings BB 13 (40) 48
- Depreciation —TE 5(c) 1,058 655
— Amortisation of land lease premium — T AEERHH 5(c) 12 12
— Impairment loss for bad and — REBER 2 FEEE
doubtful debts 5(c) 97 611
- Finance costs —BERA 5(a) 13,490 24,374
— Impairment loss on goodwill —HEZREBER 14 321,122 =
— Interest income —FEWA 4 (137) (202)
— Share of profit of an associate oIl (28,145) (178,070)
— Loss on disposal of other —HEEMERHEE L
financial assets e 4 - 208
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of —-HEREEE
fixed assets (Wz),/ 18 4 (35) 150
- Write-off of long outstanding creditors — M REARER 2
P BR TR 4 - (2,358)
- Foreign exchange (gain)/loss —[ER () BiEFE (1,466) 57
Operating loss before RETEEESBHALE
changes in working capital BB (19,466) (20,891)
Decrease in inventories TR 12,325 1,642
Increase in trade and 2 5 R E M fE AR IR
other receivables N (764) (3,191)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and 5 REMEREEC(RD),/
other payables N (4,010) 5,545
Cash used in operations REEA2RE (11,915) (16,895)
Tax paid ERBIE
— Hong Kong profits tax paid —BREEFEH (6) (85)
— Hong Kong profits tax refunded —BHEFIGEHEE 1 4
- PRC income tax refunded —FBIFAEHEE - 14

40




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %35 Bl £ 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB IC7HE)
2007 2006
Note —EELE ZTER
PitaE HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Net cash used in F-—Es
operating activities FifE AR &R (11,920) (16,962)
Investing activities REEH
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R ERARRITIER 231 =
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEEEZTR (23,293) (10,521)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEEE BEMSHUE 158 341
Proceeds from disposal of other HEHMIBERE
financial assets FTfS 5008 - 203
Loan repaid by a director of a subsidiary —HRBARZESERECER 500 =
Interest received BUFE 98 201
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents B ARREC RS R
in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries ReEEBYIRLFE 31 (13,144) =
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMEAEE RS FHE (35,450) (9,776)
Financing activities MEEE
Increase in amount due to JEN —REE N RFIE
a related company p: Yl 3,558 -
Increase in amount due to R —RRAZME
a fellow subsidiary RNRIFIEZ M 248 -
Proceeds from new bank loans REFERITERZFEHIE 362,000 90,860
Repayment of bank loans EERRITER (297,611) (40,158)
Interest paid BERFE (13,277) (23,250)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BEVMn Bz REe kA E
in respect of distribution in specie EEVRLFE 10 (6,996) =
Net cash generated from METHEE2ESFHE
financing activities 47,922 27,452
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 2L INFHE 552 714
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January RA—A—HzBHERELZEY 20 4,342 3,615
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ EXREE) /& 591 13
Cash and cash equivalents at RT=—A=t—Hz
31 December RERREEEY 20 5,485 4,342

The notes on pages 42 to 147 form part of these financial
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LAFE = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of the Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these development to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)

and the Group's interest in an associate.

1.

FREHBOR

a)

b)

AR
ZENBREERER BT H
HEA([ BB EREER]
e EassestimAae ([&F
BEMAg ) Bh 2B E
Rz BB EREER BES
STERI([BEEGFEL]) RE
B) BERARZEHRAIRE
NN S D 3k i)
B o ZEMBRERMEFEDE
BMERSMBRARES LTH
Bl 2 @A EEMRE o T XK
SEHRMZEEZSBRZH
g °

o

BEGIHMASCBEMBOAERAR
KB RARR AR HERK
AR R Z IR MEIER] 2 &
BB HREER - VIRERZE
EAEEFHENTEM B RELE
AIFTSI BME RN TS EEZ
BIBRREMNES ERRRA
MBmERA - BB
2.

S e A A o

BE_ZTTLF+-_A=1t—8
I FENGEMBHRREEAR
AR EM B AR (e [ A KE )
RS BN —FHE QR R

S o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

= investment property (see note 1(g));

- other buildings (see note 1(h)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale securities (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

b)

S e A A (48

B ERRAER 2T EELE
RESLRAE - EHMIAT &5
HERFTAREE - TOIBEETIRKE
ZRFEYIRR

- REWFE(EME1Q)

- H@EF(RMEN):
&

- DEABAHHESRSZE
BT E(RMHER) o

B ENTEBBMBHREEL
ZHBHRRFEEHEEHELH
B AR RRER - Mz FHIE
R RBRREFEEREE &
B WARFX ZBERER KA
W - ZEEFREBERR
REBEBEERLRERERENZ
FERTIBAEZEEEMEA
EREEMEL  FIEEREK
B2 E 3L B AR AL E SR AR
BROERHENEERBEE
Hz £E - BRHBFHEHSI
IR

REBFFE ARG RARRMR
RIEH T - HWEGFT A ZE
RIEREFLARET ZHRA -
ANZBREERERER] - WE
ERECERPACHEZ LSS
HAR - R E B R R SR EA R HE AR
BRAER] °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{E ~FEEELEF —H="1—HILFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 34.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

1.

H B HIOR (8])

b)

<)

YU e A A (4

ERRAEEMBHREERREE
BELHREFAEAARZER
B I & Y A R R K E A &=
REEN A - T34 -
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EAKEEREEMHEREER
AR H AL 2R B AU 25 B5 -
ATF AR HIRB R - METEH TSRS
R - BERBRRAIITE 2 EE
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RETE R R Z &8 ZH KB
HEERHRILAAHAREY
B °

SEARREZ EHIRZ 5 A
SEARZMES 2 EAIRER
A - R R BUR A M IS WK B
2EMEE - KEARRER SR
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet with equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total profit or
loss for the year between minority interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed
the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary,
the excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are charged against the Group's
interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified

as held for sale).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

©)

(Ll TaE)
i oy 2 i e A oI R A (4

DHERED - RYIFHARA
BE(TwEXXHEEKEBME
NE)WESEIEHNEARNE
EFERD st E  A%H
W AR HEZE R B AW E A
BIMER - ABUR R B B R A&
ERMBEERMRENEOE
F-LBRREREGEEESR
BERAEARBRREEERD
FZ% - RARBEERZ D H
BRESIERFALBRRER
EANFEERFEAZBERF
HERBB N YERE
BmERAZET e

fisd D BRAR IR B A 2 E5 1R 8 HH At
BREADBB IR - L
D REMPBRR ZE T ER
RAKE 2 SRR - MR
BERBEHOREEEL (KR
) BIMRERMEZZERE
S o e BT B X B EL AR SRS A -
AEBZESEEEMZER
o EEAABAKERLZD
BEREIEERBDSARES
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RARREEBBERA - RIE
RBZREZKABREE RS
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45

§%
>
g
z
3
2
g
Ll
%
cr
&
=
=




ssé?
=
5
g
®
&
g
o
g
e
AR
HE
=)
B
a}
bt
>
al

46

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LAFE = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of the associate’s net assets,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate for the year, including any impairment loss
on goodwill relating to the investment in the associate

recognised for the year (see notes 1(e)) and (j)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's
interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate.

1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an associate
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 1(j)). In respect of associates, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’'s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

d)

e)

T8 2 vl ()
AEBEREBERNRETRIE
EZEFAAREIENREE - 15
NAEBERERBE AR 2%
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LAFE = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’'s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as

follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investment in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss does not include any dividends or interest earned
on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 1(s)(vi) and

(vii).

H B HIOR (8])
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in
the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in equity, except foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of monetary items such as
debt securities which are recognised directly in profit
or loss. Dividend income from these investments
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(s)(vi) and, where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(s)(vii). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(j)), the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll cqtE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LAFE = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(s)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated
in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation:

- land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(i)); and

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 1(i).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

The other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{E ~FEEELEF —H="1—HILFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB ICHHE)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEFHEOR (8)

(CONTINUED)

h)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued) h) AR - B B ()
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held REMFEEAMEEECEE
for own use are generally dealt with in reserves. The —RIEREANERE - EEHIINE
only exceptions are as follows: SAAT
- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be - MWELESHEM ZFiE

charged to profit or loss to the extent that it EERRANK  BEEB
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in HREZEMHAIREHE
respect of that same asset immediately prior to ERFEEARBEZSER
the revaluation; and IE R
—  when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be - MWELEEHE® 28
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a FFABEE - WARE—
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same HEEXMEREBERRA
asset had previously been charged to profit or T EfEEAARATE -
loss.
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant BITEZEZYE - BEREHEZ
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct RA - BEMEKE  BEEST
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs B RAER - AR ED
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring R¥RBIEE A RIRIEIE B FrEH
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate [RERAHIACAS » LA K i & Lb 5 A9 H
proportion of production overheads and borrowing fth A 2 AR AN A0 18 B AN (LB o
costs (see note 1(u)). 1(u) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of
40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{E ~FEEELEF —H="1—HILFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2
=
g
g
&
=
2
g
&
HE
=
5
a
b
>
all

(LB ICHHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Leased assets i) MEHE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series fir 2N &= B R T A 40 E /9 BF BRI %

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group HEEEFARELEARTR—2E

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to R—EEMNFNLTEE AR
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of —HERHGHEFER G 2 ZIBLHE
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. AABE—IBHE - ZERED

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation ERNLTHE AR K b & (E L3R

of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless FTREBREHREVEERE AN HNHE

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a 5o

lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group 1) THE FALEEEEZ
Assets that are held by the Group under leases AEERBHERAZE
which transfer to the Group substantially all the E - mEFBRITDER
risks and rewards of ownership are classified MEBENZHER EXR
as being held under finance leases. Leases SR HADDBAERE
which do not transfer substantially all the risks A - TEEBBATH
and rewards of ownership to the Group are B EEEENS cHE
classified as operating leases, with the following DO EREEMRAL - A
exceptions: TSN
—  property held under operating leases that — HRBEERLFE

would otherwise meet the definition of ZYERAFITHER
an investment property is classified as BEYMECEE - BliE
an investment property on a property- &R % 2 EAED KR
by-property basis and, if classified as RIEEWE - Mmiko
investment property, is accounted for as if HAREDZE - AR
held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); BEREROREE AR
and (BFfsE1(Q) i &
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Leased assets (continued)

i)

ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(g)) or is held for
development for sale (see note 1(k)(ii)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{E ~FEEELEF —H="1—HILFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of assets

0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates:
see note 1(j)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

J) Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LAFE = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB TTRTHE)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEHEOR ()
(CONTINUED)
j) Impairment of assets (continued) i EERA(E)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) TEAE TR IR A 78 5 1k 2 17
securities and other receivables (continued) B il JE W T 2 I
(#F)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly
in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEL —H=+—H ILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

(LB IC7HE)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEFEOR (5])
(CONTINUED)
j)  Impairment of assets (continued) i) EAEE ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) TEE T R SR A 78 25 N 2 7
securities and other receivables (continued) B H il JE A K T 2 I [
(%)
Impairment losses in respect of available- AEBAFERZM
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the ] 2 B b B A T SRR
subsequent increase in fair value can be BEEBERELENSH
objectively related to an event occurring Bree . At &
after the impairment loss was recognised. 1Y (B B 18 A 45
Reversals of impairment losses in such B o REEEEZIE
circumstances are recognised in profit or TR Bl g R B R
loss. HRFER ©
Impairment losses are written off against REBEEAREEERRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %533 Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{E ~FEEELEF —H="1—HILFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll Ta1E)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

- investments in subsidiaries and associate
(except for those classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale)); and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{ %7 ~EE-L4FEF —H=+—H ILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

J) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

(Ll a1 )

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

Do EAMAE (H])
i) HMEEZ W (3

SHERKRD SR
BEZAKREEES
HEBFHERLERE
BEz&EE - Nath
EREER &5
ARRERE THHZRE
RERIREE IS HE
B (B I B E R E L
e B9 BT B0 5 AT BA 3R
o BRREHBRME-
WEEMELNRS
MAER E T BL
RE AL E EPTE LR
Ba2mA - RIARE
EBTHRERANK
NEEE R (BNERER
BEB) REFER
WS -

HERRIR (B T 18

BEEESEMEDN
FRERIR & B AL A BRE
SRBBEATKE S
# AERBERT
MR EEE o FLAR
R & B R AR
EEE atgnikt
TR BRER & B L
(H—HEBM) D
ENEAEERES
B RRBRIHIR
PR EM(H—EE
i) R E Al & B H Bk
ESE - EEREE
FHETERLER
REARFH) R FER
HERANSKEREE
(EREEE) °

61

§%
1
g
7
3
|l
A
4
ev.
#
7
E




§%
=
5
g
®
g
g
o
g
e
AR
HE
=)
F
a}
=&
>
al

62

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
[imited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

k) Inventories

i)

Horticultural services
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

k) Inventories (continued)

i)

ii)

Horticultural services (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values
are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(u)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

k)

)

Inventories (continued)

ii)

Property development (continued)

Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at

fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less

allowance for impairment losses of doubtful debts (see

note 1(j)), except where the receivables are interest-

free loans made to related parties without any fixed

repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be

immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment losses of doubtful
debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

m)

n)

0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(r)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
p) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

)

Employee benefits (continued)
ii)  Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised directly in

equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll TaE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

1.

HEEHEIOR (8]

Q

B A Bt (4)
BERAZEERBBTINBIE
BEEKAERA RUBKHREAE
HFT25 2 fRE(E - BERKE
SHEZREEZ IR S AR
ERZH - BENIREEIA A
i AR B R 2 TR S 1B e TR UG R
PTEEAE °

BRETERZERBRIN  FF
BRERBERERELEHIAE
E(BEMRRZ ERIIERRE
B R REEE £ 2 B M I B b 8
ERRBZELERIREE) HHHE
Ao RAXFRER A THIR LR
ERMELEEHREE L BE
ERBUETN - BEREBERERE
RREREEMEEZHE A
B E R ARR — BB
FA—ERVERAR  LEHE
BFEEA FHRERER 2R
—HESRER R EERE AR
BEER TRO &R Z BFEA
Ho - FREREERVERE
ARARAIKHERBRER
HIRE R R RE L MELENER
RRABER - TERAR—%
A BPZAG K B[R] — B 5 R K
FA-ERNEEREANER - I
EHIE RS E IR B R IR
mlz B AEm



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB ICHHE)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEHHEOR (4)
(CONTINUED)
q) Income tax (continued) q) sl (4)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and 2N BT I8 45 oA MO AE T TR A5 R DA

movements therein, are presented separately from REFRZ2ZBHEESHAE5 R

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are PTmiE e SBEE/REAT 25

offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax MG - MARBISASEEES

assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company IR IR EERTIEAE

or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off ZIEERERN - AEAMIBEEESE

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the EAZREAFYIE B B - MBRER

following additional conditions are met: TE & B A BURE R IR & B

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - MAHIHEEERER
the Company or the Group intends either to ms ' AlalsAEE
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and SILOFBEAREE - A
settle the liability simultaneously; or REREEREEAE:

%,

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - HEERBEEKLEEMN
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same T WNZEERABEME
taxation authority on either: EZEER AR — A

HHBERTRL -

-  the same taxable entity; or —  HETIABR—(EZHH
L VA1)

- different taxable entities, which, in each - HTRSHBEML B
future period in which significant amounts RE—ERKEME -
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are BRI A 2 RER
expected to be settled or recovered, intend HAEBNEEREE
to realise the current tax assets and settle 14 (BB S Bl - 5T
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or SILUFE A AR AR
realise and settle simultaneously. HzBimEERER

REZ FIB & ES(A
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(r)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll TaE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

(ifi)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a
business combination are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(r)
(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
are disclosed in accordance with note 1(r)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. \Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r)

s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(iti) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

Revenue recognition (continued)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the signing of the
sale and purchase agreement or the issue of an
occupation permit by the relevant government
authorities, whichever is the later. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in
the balance sheet under forward sales deposits
and instalments received.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deductible of any trade discounts.

Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably:

- revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage
of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total

contract costs for the contract; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s) Revenue recognition (continued)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Contract revenue (continued)

revenue from a cost plus contract is
recognised by reference to the recoverable
costs incurred during the period plus an
appropriate proportion of the total fee,
measured by reference to the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to the
estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract

cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is

recognised only to the extent of contract costs

incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised at the

time when the services are rendered.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

76

(Ll TaHE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relates to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

1.

HEEHEIOR (8]

D)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

u)

V)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group.

ii) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

u)

V)

i £ A
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B 7 AT AR A6 7 P i 2 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{E ~FEEELEF —H="1—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB ICHHE)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEHHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
v)  Related parties (continued) v)  BBAL (4)
iv) the party is a member of key management iv) BRATBASEBEFEER
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent, ABHIKE - KEZAD
or a close family member of such an individual, MBAREKE » (X %E
or is an entity under the control, joint control or & BIA Tl - K R 2
significant influence of such individuals; flkEATENEE
v)  the party is a close family member of a party v)  RRATWE(i)FTiE R
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, REK B I X% EE )DzlJ
joint control or significant influence of such TaES - Sk RESIRE
individuals; or ATENEE o
vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan vl ZATBREEMNTEE
which is for the benefit of employees of the SEAEEBAHNERD
Group or of any entity that is a related party of the EEREREBAEE -
Group.
Close family members of an individual are those family AR RREXERRFE -
members who may be expected to influence, or be XXZEAZE - Iz EE
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the RIHIREKE °
entity.
w) Segment reporting w)  ABEEE
A segment is a distinguishable component of the DBTEAEENES 2D
Group that is engaged either in providing products or PIERBEZERIRE (EBD
services (business segment), or in providing products ) MIRMEEMRIRBE 2 IFEL
or services within a particular economic environment BIRE(RESHE) - HZBRR
(georgraphical segment), which is subject to risks HEtoE 2 Bk R EFRFTEZE o

and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # % ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

w)

Segment reporting (continued)

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances and corporate and financing expenses.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll a1 )
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For the year ended 31 December 2007  # % — FF-LA4E = H="—»1—H Il /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll TaHE)

§%
=
5
2
=
=t
Q
]
g
£
2.
&
&
HE
=)
=
a
bt
»
al

80

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs and the Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However, as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Capital disclosures, there have been
some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure and
presentation. These disclosures are provided throughout
these financial statements, in particular in note 27.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of
capital and the Group's and the Company's objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These new
disclosures are set out in note 26(f).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial

instruments.

2.

Sl 8Ok
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FoRM ARRABEVBREE
AIE7RERMTHE: REIREES
AHERIZE VSR (ERT) I B S BRR HO5  -
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HRRAE B EIREERIE 75 - B
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BONENFER RERESEANAH
BMARANZEIRM - LERM 27

BB ERIERE 1 RS RTIE R L5
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #{%F ~EE-L4FEA —H=+—H ILFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 35).

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007 were property investment and
management, property development and construction, and

provision of horticultural services.

Turnover represents the rental income, proceeds from
sales of properties, revenue from provision of property
management services, revenue from provision of property
construction services and revenue from provision of
horticultural services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year

is as follows:

2.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)

5 g eyl BOR (80

AEELBERASHHBERRER
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2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Gross rentals from investment RERE REMYE 2 S HERE 13,455 20,488
and other properties
Gross proceeds from properties sold KRB B H &Y 2 TS sRIBE5E 12,107 2,091
Revenue from provision of property REREYEEEIRTS 2 Was 331 389
management services
Revenue from provision of property R AR FEEERS 2 W 137 -
construction services
Revenue from provision of KA RHRERS 2 W 3,309 3,201
horticultural services
29,339 26,169
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z Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3¢ b ik
§ For the year ended 31 December 2007 # % —FEEHAF | —H =1—HIFFZE
= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
& (LUBTERHE)
g
; 4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4. HAbcas BN 38
% 2007 2006
W}g —ETLE  —TTREF
ﬁ HK$'000 HK$'000
Li?; FiExT FA&TT
i
Other revenue Hithlh g
Interest income FEHA
- banks —iR1T 98 139
- others —HAth 39 63
137 202
Others HAftb 165 107
302 309
Other net income HAt A F 58
Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets HEETEEE 2 W (E18) 35 (150)
Loss on disposal of other financial assets  HEH S EE 2 518 - (208)
Revaluation gains/(losses) on buildings BFEhks(EE) 40 (48)
Wirite-off of long outstanding creditors MsH REAIRER 2 R AR - 2,358
Net foreign exchange gain HNE LR 7 BE 1,340 17
1,415 1,969
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBLE Os#), %Al
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREAT (B1E), SRFIEHER(GFA) -
(crediting):
2007 2006
ZEELFE T RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FATT
(a) Finance costs (a) BAERA
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERFE
- wholly repayable within five years — AR FRBHEER 18,153 18,025
— repayable after five years —ARAFIRER - 7,291
Interest on loan from a fellow subsidiary 2R & R Z—MREH B A &
ZERZFE 2 =
Total interest expense on financial IR AFEFTAER
liabilities not at fair value ZeMBREZAE
through profit or loss Fisz 4858 18,155 25,316

Less: Interest expense capitalised into i : ZEEFWERNE R

properties under development* 2R BRI (4,665) (942)
13,490 24,374
2 The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.59%-6.41% * EERATIAFEIB0% E6.41%(=FF
(2006: 4.62%-5.13%) per annum. 7NEE 1 4.62% £ 5.13%) TIAB AL
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB ICHHE)
5. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBLET O wA (4)
(CONTINUED)
2007 2006
“ERLE ZZTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
(b)  Staff costs (including (b) BIFK(BEEEHL)
directors’ remuneration)
Contributions to defined contribution RERMKGTE
retirement plan R 259 290
Salaries, wages and other benefits £¢ - TAREMWER 13,364 24,072
13,623 24,362
(c)  Otheritems (c) HtEE
Amortisation of land lease premium METHEREH 12 12
Depreciation of fixed assets ETEENE 1,058 655
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gl
—audit services —EEhRHB 629 444
— tax services — MR 39 18
— other services — E R 402 55
Operating lease charges: BERNRAY :
minimum lease payments REROMIR
- hire of plant and machinery —HRBE R 9 9
— hire of other assets (including -HREMEE
property rentals) (RENERS) 2,634 2,463
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts AERRESSE
— trade debtors —[ENE S5 97 -
- other receivables — At EGE - 611
Share of an associate's taxation [E(GHE AR 6,737 230
Rentals received and receivable BRER
from investment and HitEe Bk
other properties less direct outgoings of [z e RERESH
HK$3,738,000 3,738,000/ 7T
(2006: HK$6,070,000) (ZFZ7F 1 6,070,00057T) (9,717) (14,418)
Cost of inventories (note 18(c)) FERKA (Fi3E18(0) 12,505 2,130
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB IC7HE)
6. INCOME TAX 6. PifiBt
a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement a) AWM B
represents:
2007 2006
—EEEF  ZETRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax Z<Hi%i{18 — F8RI1EH
Under-provision in respect BT FERE
of prior years = 8 10
Current tax — PRC Income Tax ZNERFRIE — R E TSR
Over-provision in respect B FE R
of prior years B - (14)
Deferred tax R IE
Origination and reversal of ETREREIEER
temporary differences [o] #3 1,013 4,059
1,021 4,055
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax, PRC Income HRAEEHEE—TTLF+=
Tax and Singapore Income Tax for the year ended 31 A=+T—RLEFETERES
December 2007 has been made as the Group has no R B K 5 N3 R AR (il AT FE AR A
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong, the Ao I EIER BB RS
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Singapore REAREME (TR TS
for the year (2006: Nil). RIS HREE(ZEE R

FE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB ICHHE)
6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 6. PrfeBe (&)
b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting b) R R B w5 B BH S B

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: At OlsdR) R g
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2007 2006
—E2TLF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBAT (E518), 5 (311,249) 154,587
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before BT AT (E518), %A~
taxation, calculated at the rates HEMIE - BABEBR
applicable to profits in the ARG 2 B EFTE
countries concerned (54,459) 27,053
Tax effect of non-deductible A HIBR B R 2 B
expenses TE 57,331 1,585
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBIA 2 TS 7 22 (701) (1,310)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZ ARARIBEE
not recognised WYy 4,773 7,788
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses ~ANFEEFFBEFE 2 FHIE
utilised this year EE 2 B s & (573) (403)
Tax effect of share of profit FE(E— Bt E R R m
of an associate IR E (4,925) (31,162)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERED R
— Hong Kong Profit Tax —EBNE 8 10
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE
— PRC Income Tax — RS - (14)
Others Hith (433) 508
Actual tax expense EEBIERS 1,021 4,055
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(Ui TTAHE)
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. W4
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of BEBRBRAFEHE 161 KER 2 ES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: e T :
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2007
Directors’ inkind Discretionary scheme Total
fee e 28 bonuses contributions S o2
Lk REMFE BERA  RIGHEER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEx TEr TEx TEx
Executive Directors: HITES
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick ENE - 1,113 - 7 1,120
Cheong Kim Pong BEEH - 63 - - 63
Cheong Sim Eng el - 768 - 7 775
Independent non-executive directors; B IFHITES :
Kan Fook Yee Eifaga 100 - - - 100
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic REHR 100 - - - 100
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRoAE 100 - - - 100
Non-executive directors; FRTES
Lim Ghee 03 - 220 - - 220
Cheong Hooi Kheng* EEm- - 9% - 4 100
300 2,260 - 18 2,578
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(U TTAHE)
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. W4 (8)
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2006
Directors' inkind  Discretionary scheme Total
fee e 28 bonuses  contributions ZTTRF
E=nt REMFE WELA  EIRGHEIER =HI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAx TEx AT TAT
Executive Directors: HITES
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick FEAT - 2,176 - 12 2,188
Cheong Kim Pong ok - 98 - - 9
Cheong Sim Eng ol - 1,317 1,500 12 2,829
Independent non-executive directors: BV IFHTES
Kan Fook Yee EifagA 100 = - = 100
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic RER 100 - - - 100
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BILE 100 - - = 100
Non-executive directors; FRTES
Lim Ghee W& = - 300 - 300
Cheong Hooi Kheng * EEm- - 143 - 7 150
300 3,734 1,800 31 5,865
@ Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim * EEHALtTAMELXLZERAES -
Ghee.

The above emoluments do not include the monetary value
of the rent-free accommodation provided to Mr. Cheong
Pin Chuan, Patrick, an executive director of the Company,
through a property owned by the Group. During the year,
the monetary value of such residential accommodation
provided to this executive director based on the tenancy
agreements entered into by the Group was HK$420,000
(2006: HK$720,000).

File T 2ER RSB E mE A
REl—RBPTEZERREEFERZ
RHETEEMN2EREB NFA -
RIS Bt A ZET L 2 F A1
ZF REBTZEHATESZEEEN
2 B (EE 420,000 (=TT N
4 1 720,000787T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2006: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed

in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

I i 0 A L

(Ll TaE)

AamEFMALTF  MAE(ZZTEXR
F WA BEE EEZNKE7P
WE - Hh=2 (B F: =4)

other three (2006: three) individuals are as follows: AT ZHBBRENT
2007 2006
—EBELE BT ARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBT T
Salaries and other emoluments e K H A E 3,698 6,301
Discretionary bonuses FOIEIEAL 570 3,530
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFTEIME R 21 36
4,289 9,867

The emoluments of the three (2006: three) individuals with

ZR(ZEERE: ZR)BRaFHA

the highest emoluments are within the following bands: TZFHMELTEHER :
2007 2006
—EZLF ZETRF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 N
Nil — HK$1,000,000 % —1,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t —2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t —2,500,000 7T 1 -

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000

3,000,001 7t —3,500,000 7T -
5,000,001 7t — 5,500,000 7T -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTRHE)
9. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9. KA vIBERE R A\ REAG 4R
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders ARRERFEARGEREEBEERRE
of the Company includes a loss of HK$300,345,000 (2006: 300,345,000 T 2 BIE(ZZ T X
HK$441,000) which has been dealt with in the financial & :441,00087T) F ZEBEERAR
statements of the Company. A G RR P BEIE ©
Reconciliation of the above amount to the company's profit Lt BEA R T F N w2 BRI
for the year: I
2007 2006
TETLFE —TEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Amount of consolidated loss BERAAF]
attributable to equity B IS ¥RaR AR IR 2 e
shareholders dealt with in the BB AELIREEE
Company'’s financial statements (300,345) (447)
Dividends from subsidiaries SC B B 2 s R
attributable to the profits ZERMB R RIRRE.
of the previous financial year, A E R R R 2
approved and paid during the year 163,800 -
Company'’s loss for the year RRABRAEE 2 E518
(note 26(b)) (K5E26(0)) (136,545) (441)
10. DIVIDEND 10. JBER
2007 2006
—ETEFE ZEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Distribution in specie (note) B K (FE) 1,731,047 -

Note: Pursuant to the group reorganization (the “Group Reorganization”)
as detailed in note 31 below, the Company distributed of all of the
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each held in the issued share capital

of Hong Fok Land International Limited (“HF Land"”), a company

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company before 1 August 2007, in specie out of its
credit arising from the Company's retained profits and contributed
surplus to the equity shareholders of the Company whose names
appeared on the Register of Members of the Company at the close of

business day on 25 July 2007 on a one for one basis.

e« RIBT XS Frsfal 2 EEMEA (&
BEHE] ARARENELESZHE
AR BMRE M RBABBREEZ
BR MR-ZTTLt&tA=-t+HH
R AR B ARA R IR &
ZARRAREEFHAEAEMDIERR Hong
Fok Land International Limited ([HF
Land]) (—ERBEREFMELZBR
REIRR=ZEZLtFNA—HAALXR
Rz 2EKBAR) 2B EITRARAT
BEZHMBEREEE T LR
B o



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB IC7HE)
10. DIVIDEND (CONTINUED) 10 BB (&)
2007
—E2ELHF
HK$'000
FBT

Net assets of HF Land and Fr k2 HF Land 2 i B A R

its subsidiaries (THF Land £E ]) 2

(the’ HF Land Group”) distributed: EEFE:
Fixed assets &&= 1,759,008
Interest in an associate 1) /N W ey 647,072
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIRITIE K 671
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A EUERIE 7,036
Inventories FE 12,500
Tax recoverable A ERIE 73
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 6,996
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEIRIE (13,238)
Bank borrowings RITEE (430,700)
Amount due to a subsidiary JERARRA B —MEM B R R Z A

of the Company (1,069)
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEEE (251,790)
Deferred income R A (5,512)
Net assets distributed to the equity DIRTARAERTEAZ

shareholders of the Company BEFE (1,731,047)
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect EEEYDIRZEE

of the distribution in specie T FREDN
Cash and cash equivalents distributed FinpikzRe KRS EEY (6,996)
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ARBREEXTEBRAFEIRER

BWRE(ZFFAT B -

The directors of the Company do not recommend the

payment of a final dividend in respect of the year (2006: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

a)

b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$312,270,000
(2006: profit of HK$150,532,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,869,671,260 (2006:
1,492,410,986) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No diluted loss per share is presented as the exercise
of the Company's outstanding share options for the
year ended 31 December 2007 would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2006 is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$150,532,000 and the weighted
average number of 1,502,927,847 ordinary shares,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at
31 December 2006

Effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company's share option
scheme for nil consideration

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares (diluted) at
31 December 2006

11

I O ), 7

a)

b)

RIBA R Z B S
BRASREBRITRMN

BRI Ol 4H),#A
BREAN(ERE) BT THBIE
FARDAIEREBREEGEE
312,270,000 87T (Z TN F ¢
si £ 150,5632,00078 7T ) & F A
BT @ARAR D 2 I 15 2K
1,869,671,260 %k (ZZ & XF :
1,492,410,986 %) 5t & -

BB Ol 4R), A
HRBE_ZTLE+_-H
=+ BULEFETEARAREZH
RITEERB BAE 5 8 B 5 BB 1R R
Do WA T2 BREEERS -

HEZZTENF+ZA=1+—
BEFEZGREERT TR
- NUNICTIE ==l R
150,532,000 7% 7t [ & i A A% 1
2 hnEEF 5 %01,602,927,847 B%
STE HEEMT

R-BEEXE+_A=+—HZ
ALY < IS5 25

1,492,410,986

=271
-

10,516,861

RIZEZERF+ZRA=+—HzEBERRN
(H8) Z hnieFa 8

1,502,927,847



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
business and georgraphical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format
because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal
financial reporting.

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business
segments:

Property investment and management: the leasing of
properties to generate rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the properties values in the long term, and

provision of building management services.
Property construction and development: the development,
construction and sale of properties, and project

management.

Horticultural services: the provision of horticultural services.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)

12. ¥

DEERTDRAREZ X% RIE D
B2 - ARBOBERBIUARSE
BeABRBHRETN  MEKES
TERFPA o

E 3 Zig |
AEETZREATERSE

MERERER  HEWEARIE
ERARERERBDESERE - &
R T B IR R o

ME - URABEE -

EZ AR - PR HEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TLFHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. ik (&)

él.?
=
=1
15§
]
=
g
g
g
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o
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I
o
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HE
=)
B
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=
>
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Business segments (continued) 050 B (41
Property Property
investment construction Horticuftural Inter-segment
and management  and development services elimination Unallocated Consolidated
HEREREE ERERER ek (EEPAE B 2

0002006 2000 2006 2000 2006 2000 2006 2007 006 2000 2006
Z33tE ZEEAE S9RC SRR CORLE SEEE SRR SEEAE CRRLE EEAE CIms CREA
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HK§'000
T W Tl TR T TR Te TR T TR Tau TR

94

Revene from extemalcustomers EFER e BUAME 09 183 339 30 - - - - B3 218
Intersegment revenue MEAE A e 00 T 20405 11912 6 16 (20831) (12,689 - - - -
Other revenug from extemal customers RESIER 2 Afls Kl 7 bi} 3 5 4 - - 7010
Total &t 13561 21949 333 13793 3320 321 (20831) (12689 101 2 29504 26216
Segment resul ARG 000 3662 1994 11261 178 6 [20831) (12689 (5190 (951 (4919) 689
Unallocated operating income and expenses ROTEENARFS 3w
(Loss)fprofit from aperations 3% (B /5 (4782 891
Finance cosis Eries (13490 (24374
Share of profitof an associte BB ERa 25 28145 178070 - - - - - - - - B 178070
Impairment loss on goodwil EERERR - - ) - - - - - - - () -
Income tax Fih (1.021) (4058
(Loss)frofit for the year KE(BE)/EA (312270 15053
Depreciaton and amortiszton ERfEREE
for the year 9% 173 8 2 65 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB TTHTHE)
SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. 2y %A (&)
Business segments (continued) 80K (4)
Property Property
investment construction
and management and development  Horticultural services Consolidated
NERERER NERERER EER% &a

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERtE “EEAF CERCE STRAR C3RtF SERAE CIRLE SEEA

—R —R —R —T/N

HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér  fer TEr TEr TEx TEr TER  TAR

Segment assets HREE 213624 2000436 167,376 12995 1,005 996 442,005 2,014,427
Interest in an associate R-ElERE ER - 6127 - - - - - 61277
Unallocated assets FAREE 7974 13804
Total assets GEE 449,979 2,641,002
Segment liabilities PERE 124911 749599 40,144 6,187 21 216 165276 756,002
Unallocated liabilities FAEBE 4,054 710
Total liabilties aafk 169,330 756,712
Capital expenditure REREARY

incurred during the

year 23,055 10,780 451,508 14 4 305
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(=]
S For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
& (LU TR )
g
2
= 12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. 2y %iH4 (40)
:% Geographical segments Hb [ 43 551
W]g In presenting information on the basis of geographical RIZWE S FE25]ERE - S Bk
ﬁ segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical DIEBEFHEDE  pHEEERER
§ location of customers. Segment assets and capital AR EEME S5
&Tl expenditure are based on the geographical location of the

assets.
Hong Kong and
Mainland China Singapore Total
BEARTERH g @it
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“ETtE ZTERF CETtE ZTTSNF CEEtE ZTTSF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TiEn FHT TiEx TR TiEn T
Revenue from external HTHIER
customers b6 16,557 26,169 12,782 - 29,339 26,169
Other revenue from REHINEF
external customers ZEAE 153 107 12 = 165 107
Segment assets NEAE 282,758 2028144 167,221 612,858 449,979 2,641,002
Capital expenditure incurred R
during the year ZEARRR 23,276 14198 451508 - 474784 14,198
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB IC7HE)
13. FIXED ASSETS 13. Al 2 ¥
a)  The Group a) AHEH

Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Furniture, use under
Buildings equipment Property  operating

held forown  and other held for leases Total

use carried fixed assets future ARELE fixed

atfairvalue  5ffl + 1B Investment development H4)54ER assets

NATFESE REM  Sub-total property FfFA% FBHEELH ETEE
BFERET EEEE PN REWME  BRME g A
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TAR TAR TAR TiEn TiER TAR

Cost or valuation: RESEE
At 1 January 2006 W=ZZ \5-A—-H 460 13,245 13,706 1,966,640 183,400 600 2,164,345
Exchange adjustments EH AR - 2 2 - - - 2
Additons AE = 3484 3484 7,037 - - 10,521
Disposal HE - (3,200 (3,200) (320) - - (3,520)
Deficit on revaluation BG4 (48) - (48) - = = (48)
Less: elimination of accumulated W EREYH

depreciation (12) = (12) - = = (12)
Fair value adjustment ATERE - - - 20,963 - - 20,963
At31 December 2006 RIZERE

tzA=t-H 400 18851 13951 1,994320 183400 600__ 2192271 __
Representing: HER
Cost 7B - 13,551 13,551 - 183,400 600 197,551
Valuation - 2006 hE-—25RE 400 - 400 1,994,320 - - 1,994.720
400 13,551 13,951 1,994,320 183,400 600 2,192,271

At 1 January 2007 W=ZZt5-A—-H 400 13,551 13,951 1,994,320 183,400 600 2,192,271
Exchange adjustments B 5 A - 74 74 - = = 74
Additions NE

— through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ —BBREHEA) - 642 642 - - - 642

- others —Hit = 313 313 22,980 - - 23,293
Disposal HE - (479) (479) - = - (479)
Distribution in specie ENHIK - (9,269) (9,269) (1,758,153)  (183,400) - (1,950,822)
Surplus on revaluation Ry 40 - 40 - - - 40
Less: elimination of W 2REEYH

accumulated

depreciation (10) - (10) = = = (10)
Fair value adjustment ATEAR - - - 14,173 - - 14,173
At 31 December 2007 RIZZLE

tzA=t-H 430 4832 ° 5262 213320 . - 600 279,182 __
Representing: HER
Cost 7B - 4,832 4,832 - - 600 5,432
Valuation - 2007 fhE-—F5+E 430 - 430 273320 - - 273750
430 4,832 5,262 273,320 - 600 279,182
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB ICHHE)
13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)
a)  The Group (continued) a)  AEE (8)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Furniture, use under
Buildings equipment Property  operating
held forown  and other held for leases Total
use carried fixed assets future ARELE fixed
atfairvalue  5ffl » 1B Investment development H4)34ER assets
UAFESIRZ REf  Subtotal property H{FA%R FEELH EREE
BERRET ETEE Mt RENE BRE2NE IR e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAn T Thr TARL TR FHr
Accumulated amortisation ZRBHERIE
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2006 WZZZ F-A—-H - 11,630 11,630 - 183,400 124 195,154
Exchange adjustments B 5 A = 2 2 = = = 2
Charge for the year FEEZH 12 643 655 - - 12 667
Wiitten back on disposal HERED = (3,029) (3,029) = = - (3,029)
Elimination on revaluation BRI (12) - (12) - - - (12)
At 31 December 2006 WZZTRE
TZREt-B .. = 9266 9266 - __ 183400 _____ 136 _ 192,802 __
At 1 January 2007 W=ZZtF-A—-H - 9,266 9,266 - 183,400 136 192,802
Exchange adjustments ] - 4 42 = = - 4
Charge for the year REEX 10 1,048 1,068 - - 12 1,070
Distribution in specie ENHIK - (8,414) (8,414) - (183,400) - (191,814)
Written back on disposal HERER - (356) (356) - - - (356)
Elimination on revaluation BRI (10) - (10) = = = (10)
At31 December 2007 R-ZRLE
+=A=t-8 . = 1986, 1586 - _______ = 1481734
Net book value: REEE
At 31 December 2007 WZZTLE
+-A=t-H 430 3246 3676 273,320 - 452 277,448
At31 December 2006 RIZERE
T=A=1-A 400 4,285 4,685 1,994,320 = 464 1,999.469
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

All investment properties of the Group were
revaluated as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December
2006 at their open market value by reference to recent
market transactions in comparable properties. The
valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of Surveyors, CB Richard Ellis Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

The buildings held by the Group for own use were
revalued as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December
2006 at their open market value by reference to recent
market transactions in comparable properties. The
valuations were carried out by an independent firm
of Surveyors, CB Richard Ellis Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

The revaluation surplus of HK$40,000 (2006: deficit of
48,000) has been transferred to the income statement
of the Group.

Had these buildings held for own use been carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$531,000 (2006:
HK$551,000).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

13. [l s ¥ (1)

a)

RZBZELFF+_A=+—HEK
ZEERFFZA=F+—H &K
SEAMAEREYMIELTEN -5
HABREZ ARMEFELRE
A Lb W2 2 AT I5 32 S EAT ©
HERBHSMEIERETE
RAR(RERBREERZR/
ZegRret+ 8 TWHART
TEY) M B R RR R A BUR 2 &8
B2) AT o

R=ZEZLF+-_A=+—HK
—EERE+_A=1+—HB" ' &
SEFEEREFTETEM - B
HEREZ ARMEFELTRZE
At 2 BT 5 2 5 H#ETT ©
HEABIAESMEIERETHE
FRAR (R BRS S A=A/
BefRet 8 TWHMNMA
HEY B RFE R BUR 2 &
BR) AT ©

BE(HAE#40,0008 7T (ZEEN
£ E54448,00058 7T) B 8 A
B ek o

Wz ER1EE AR FRKAR
EHFEINERE - HEEAEKA
531,000 ;t( = & & X & :
551,000 7T) °
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o
S For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~FEE-LEF —H=—+—HILFE
= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
g (LUBTERHE)
g».
2
= 13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. D5 % (4)
:% c)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as c) WEREFEITET :
HE :
= follows:
B
%f 2007 2006
> —EEEF  ZEERHF
2l
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
In Hong Kong RES
— long leases —REHE 273,000 1,989,000
— medium-term leases — IR E 1,202 1,184
274,202 1,990,184
Outside Hong Kong BB LASN
— long leases —RHHAE - 5,000
274,202 1,995,184
Representing: HER
Buildings held for own use AR FAESBR 2 FEE
carried at fair value B REF 430 400
Investment property B 273,320 1,994,320
Interests in leasehold land RIRIB A SR A5 1E
held for own use under EREE L s
operating leases 452 464

274,202 1,995,184
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;E —~EE-L4EF —H=—+—HILFZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LU ICHIHE)
14. GOODWILL 14. W%
The Group
rEE
HK$'000
FBT
Cost: B
Additions arising from acquisition AW s E AR (31 MEAZ
of subsidiaries (note 31) and RERRZZEZLF+_HA=1+—H
at 31 December 2007 321,122
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEREESE :
Impairment loss for the year and RNE ZREEER
at 31 December 2007 R-BELF+-_A=+—H (321,122)
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLF+ZA=+—H =
At 31 December 2006 RZBEERF+=-A=+—AH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F ~EE-L4FEA —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTRTHE)

14. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 14. P& (8)
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On 1 August 2007, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Goldease Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Goldease Group”) at a
consideration of HK$451,491,000, of which HK$23,991,000
was settled by cash and the remaining balance was settled
by issue of 900 million new shares of the Company to Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), which was the controlling
shareholder holding an approximately 40.4% interest in the
Company before 1 August 2007 and which became the
ultimate holding company of the Company on 1 August
2007. Further details of this acquisition are set out in note
31.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arose from the acquisition of the Goldease Group. The
Goldease Group's operating business segment is property
development in the Republic of Singapore.

Goodwill acquired has been allocated to the cash generating
unit (“CGU") of the Goldease Group. The recoverable
amount of the CGU is determined based on net assets’ fair
value of the Goldease Group. The net assets of the Goldease
Group mainly consist of properties, whose fair values are
determined at their open market value by reference to
recent market transactions in comparable properties. Due to
the fact that such goodwill arose principally as a result of the
unexpected fluctuation in the share price of the Company’s
shares at the date of acquisition and, by reference to the
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, the closing per share
price of the Company on that day was used as a proxy for
the fair price of the Company’s 900 million new shares for
the purpose of calculating the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Goldease Group, the net assets’ fair value
of the Goldease Group is lower than the carrying amount
of CGU and accordingly, the Company’s directors are of
the view that an impairment loss of HK$321,122,000 is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

R-ZZT+tENA—H ZEEKE
Goldease Investment Limited K H H
B2 7] ([Goldease &£ |) 2 100% A%
7 - {8 A451,491,000/8 ¢ E &
23,991,000 B T IAR @ 2T+ RERFK
AlEBMBEREXERAA([BEE
% |)%£47900,000,000 B& A A B #T A& (D
FREMN BEBEER_ZETEFN
A— BRI AFBARRTIA40.4%
ZEBRBRITR=—"ZZ+F/\A—H
BARRARZREERAT - B
TR 2 s — P EF IR NI EEST ©

Bl & 2 WLA: (406 B ) Z WA B
RBEAAMET BEDEKE
Goldease &£ B ME4% ° Goldease £
ZISEXEB BRI IR EFE 2
MFEERE -

FriiE 2 BEE DB E Goldease £ &
ZREEEBN((REELESBM]) -
e EEENZA B IR E TR K
Goldease 5B s BEEFELTEE
JE ° Goldease EBIZ BEFEEER
WMEARK  HATEDBEBEEART
HEEW2EA LY E TSR
SEE - AREEEEEZEALRRQF
A& B R YR A% A H3 2 Al T8 5 & i 22
£ RIBBRBEB ISR EERIE IR
[¥BE6] ARAINZBZEBRIK
{8 73 #% 8 £ 7 2 900,000,000 %
MR ZIEEAFE  #EUGFERERK
¥ Goldease SBIFTEELEZME - M
Goldease RE 2 EEFEAFEER
ReELBENZERE Bt &2
AIEERARERE321,122,000 70
ERfRE lm R PR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. B A R 2 B
The Company
/N
2007 2006
—BRLE  EEAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost REMRG - RE 1 1,418,163
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TRERFHIZEEASERE &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of EXBBZHBARZER -
the Group.
Proportion of ownership interests
FAERRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
and operation  paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary
Name of company SRR ERTRAE FEEZ NG i — N Principal activity
NEER E ik R BiEn %E G IERH
Arundel Trading Pte Ltd.*  The Republic 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property development
of Singapore S$1 each MEER
("Singapore”)  2BEEBREEIFILLZ
Gl Esilles LRk
(M3 )
Cheung Kee Garden Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding and
R EEBRAT A HK$1 each and provision of
450,000 non-voting horticultural services
deferred shares RAR kA
of HK$1 each EERE
100RERAEET
LAk R450,0001%
FREEIETZ
ERFEELER
Firth Enterprises Pte Ltd.*  Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each  100% - 100% Property development
Gl 2RBRAEIRT EER NEER
Goldease Investments British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited* Islands IREEIETZEBR REER
RERRES
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§ For the year ended 31 December 2007 ## - EE-L4FE |~ H=—+—HI-F/ZE
= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
& (LU TR )
“g’.
2
c 15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. JAWE A "2 8% (8)
g (CONTINUED)
T
W]g Proportion of ownership interests
= HERRRLA
% Place of Particulars Group's
‘/;j incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
and operation  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company RALEATE BRIRAR KEEZ NG B — R Principal activity
NEER EE 3L RS fEay A R NG TEXH
Hong Fok Development Singapore 1,000,000 ordinary 100% - 100% Property development
(Newton) Pte. Ltd.* N shares of S$1 each EL
1,000,0008R SR EI B T
Erilh
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 ~ 100% - 100% Property investment
it each and 100 non-voting WERE
deferred shares of HK$0.3
each
100REREEETL
LRRR100RERER
03B BRZRELR
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Project management
Resources Limited it of HK$1 each HEER
hERRERERAR 1,000 ERAE AT
il
* Audited by KPMG, Singapore * 4 KPMG, Singapore #1%
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB IC7HE)
16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. JA—RIBE 2 A ") Z B4
The Group
rEEH
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FATT
Share of net assets B EEFE - 612,771
Market value of shares listed in the RFT I HAE EiT 2
Republic of Singapore R THE - 561,912
Summary financial information on the associate (i.e. 20.2% BERARRABE-_ZTTNF+=A
equity interest in Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC") in =T —HIEFEZUBERREZ (A
respect of the year ended 31 December 2006: BEREFARAAITEBERERE]D 2
0.2% A% #E) :
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues  Profit/(loss)
BE B s Wia wF(B8)
2006 “TERF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT THT THT THT
100 per cent 100% 6,371,237 2,578,616 3,792,621 321,807 (81,934)
Group's effect interest AEEERER

The above financial information of the associate is a
summary of the consolidated operating results and financial
position of the associate, for the year ended and as of 31
December 2006, based on its financial statements. The
Group's share of the associate’s results are based on the
associate’s financial statements and adjusted for the cross-

holding between the Company and the associate.

Refer to the Group Reorganization as set out in note 31,
HFC ceased to be the Group’s associate with effect from
1 August 2007.

178,070

EaBE AR 2B BEER BZHE R
ABEZSEAF+_A=1+—H1t
FERRZAZREEEEBERIRTE
RRZHE  DEREBBHRER - K
S B EAHE AN B 2 AT E RN
R A2 B SRR AR IR AR R A B R
NEZR X FFRR MR -

HAHI ST FTE  RIEEEEHR - 7
—EELFEN\A-BEBEREELH
RAREE 2B E Q7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB ICHHE)
17. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL 17. 3 3 h 4 1l 9
ASSETS
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—E2ELF —EER
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Available-for-sale unlisted equity BAFEAEEERET
securities at fair value IR FE 75 1,990 1,610
Loan to a fellow subsidiary (note (i) B —ERRMB AR Z
B (3 () 54 =
Loan receivable (note (ii)) FEME TR (P& (i) 490 990
2,534 2,600
Note: BifEE
(i) Loan to a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and not (0] BT —EREMBARNZERYER
repayable within one year. - TEERBAR—FRER -
(ii) Loan receivable from a director of a subsidiary: (i) R —FEREAREE 2GR

Name of borrower

Position

Terms of the loan
- duration and repayment terms

- loan amount
- interest rate

- security

Balance of the loan
—at 1 January 2006
- at 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007
- at 31 December 2007

Maximum balance outstanding
- during 2007
- during 2006

Mr. Tsui Yeung Kun, Andrew

Director of a subsidiary

Repayment on 31 August 2010

HK$990,000

2% per annum over Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate

None

HK$990,000
HK$990,000

HK$490,000

HK$990,000
HK$990,000

There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any provision

made against the principal amount of or interest on this loan

at 31 December 2007 and 2006.

fERARE : BEREE

Bfi -HHBARZES

ERZER

-BRRERER R-E-%£
NA=t-REE

-BReH 90,0007

—flE BARARERS
nEx2E

i &

EFkh

-W=FF F-A-B 90,0007

-RZEFRETZA=1-H

k=%5t5-A-A 990,000 %7

~WZFBEETZA=T-B  490.000%7

HARERDLEH

-N-FELER 90,0007

-RZFENER 90,0007

R-EBEZLFR_ZEERF+_H
=t—HB YEBBAXNZRE
MERULEERZASBEREN S
H AR B -



18.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB IC7HE)
INVENTORIES 18. #1
a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet a) JINALGEEEABERACEER
comprise: 7=
2007 2006
—E2TLFE ZBERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Plants B = 260 228
Properties held for sale HIEL S 160,705 12,500
160,965 12,728
All of the inventories are expected to be recovered FMBEZEGFTERETR —FAK
within one year. M@ o
b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties held for b) HELEVEZEEAEBES TN
sale is as follows: T
2007 2006
—ETEE —TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Outside Hong Kong EAB LA
— Under leases of 50 years or —1R#E 50 F 3 50 F LA L
more (long leases) ZHE(RPAE) - 12,500
— Freehold — KA KERE 160,705 -
160,705 12,500
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB ICHHE)
18. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 18. 18 (&)
c)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised c) WBRARIZEFEESBE W
as an expense is as follows: T

Plants Properties Total

BE LIES st
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EEEE ZEERE CEEHE ZEERE CEEE ZEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TERL FAL TERT TAL

=
=1

15§
]

=

g
@

g
=3
=]

2,
o
E.
I
o
AR
HE
=)
B
af
=
>
4

Carryingamountof ~ BEFE

inventories sold AR 511 484 11,994 1,646 12,505 2,130
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B 5 B S0 fib M Be sk
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ /N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF —EELHF —ETER E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'0
FET FAT FET ?%E
Amount due from a FEM —FEIFT B A A
subsidiary 2R - - 209,379 230,520
Trade debtors FEWE 5 8RR 506 738 - -
Other debtors H A FEUARSR 1,464 559 - -
Loans and receivables B R EWGRIA 1,970 1,297 209,379 230,520
Gross amounts due from EREZF AL
customers for TERIBHREE
contract work - 595 - =
Retentions receivable — JEUURE B - 338 - =
Deposits and e RIBRAR
prepayments 1,559 5,867 368 293
3,529 8,097 209,747 230,813
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(Ui TTAHE)
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B 5 B b ME Bk R (481)
(CONTINUED)
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non- Bl — B RA A2 RRTHEE R -
interest-bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment. TEr B BEEEEE -
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FrEE S5 kEMEWKIE W Hi#ER
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. —FRKREIKER AR ©
(a) Ageing analysis (a) KRB
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S REAMEWFHIEA - U
debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful 2 S R% (R RBRREERE)
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the REZEB ZRESITHT
balance sheet date:
The Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELE T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 1 month —@AT 366 561
1 to 3 month —ZE=1&H 139 171
More than 3 months but less HmE=MEA
than 12 months BLR+Z@A 1 6
506 738
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 27(a). AEBZEERKSH LMK E

27(a) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LU TTRHE)
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19, B5) K 0 A ROk ()

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors (b)  MEWBCR B Mk 2 WAL
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are ERAREKE SRR ZRERBED
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group FABEKELA - BRIEAEBRE
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in UL Bl A B 2 RE 2 2 iR Ak Bl 1E
which case the impairment loss is written off against Al RLBER TREBEE
trade debtors directly (see note 1(j)(i)). B e WUE 5 R 5K R s (5K

1)) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARK(REFREREBEE
during the vyear, including both specific and collective MERD ) B 2 EBIT
loss components, is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
TEELFE —TEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
At 1 January R—H—H - -
Impairment loss recognised BERZREEE 97 -
Uncollectible amounts written off EEE < A e Uk B e (97) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. U5 K I b e Bk | (%)

(CONTINUED)

§%
1
g
7
3
s
N
A
4
ev.
#
i
£

AT WA 2 HEWCR S R
&5 2k KRR R TR E 2 & W
BEERZRERATMOT

(¢) Trade debtors that are not impaired (¢)
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

are as follows:

The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELE ZZTTX

HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Neither past due nor impaired BEARBHEATARE 366 561
Less than 1 month past due BaE R —EA 122 150
More than 1 month past due BEafZR—ER 18 27
140 177
506 738

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

BEARE A TR AR BB 2 IE MR IR T
WERZORLY BERCH 2R
5o

BB HIE R TR E 2 & R IR T)
WRETEAEEAR RIFEEAR
BZBIEP - ENNELER
BEERR MR EEERYE
HREREE R EBERIDBA
AEEkE - mBARZE AR
EHRERE - ASREYERA
ERERZSEHERR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB ICHHE)
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. REXRBLEEEY
The Group The Company
EE AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETLHF ZTTRF —EELHF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FAT FTHET FAT
Deposits with banks and ~ TEHRRTT R
other financial H A0S B
institutions ZER 5,494 5,224 7 12
Cash on hand FHEZRS 1 30 - =
5,495 5,254 7 12
Pledged bank balances ERRTEE
and time deposits for ZRITEER
bank borrowings E BT (10) (912) - -
Cash and cash equivalents REEBEBEXRR
in the balance sheetsand ~ 4LABREHRER
the consolidated cash ZHEERBSE
flow statement ZEY 5,485 4,342 7 12

At 31 December 2007, bank balances carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.00% to 1.50% (2006:
0.00% to 2.75%). At 31 December 2007, pledged bank
balances carry interest rate of 0.00% to 0.25% (2006: 0.00%
10 2.75%). The pledged bank balances will be released upon

the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
pledged bank balances have been pledged to secure long-
term borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current

assets.

R-_TBELE+-—A=+—HZHRT
HEHEENTHR0.00% E1.50%(=FF
NEE 0.00% £2.75%) 2 TS AR
H-RZTT+LFF+-_A=+—HZ
EERRITAE 1712 0.00% £ 0.25% (=
TN 0.00% £2.75% ) Z K RE
B - BEFRTETHERBHEITE
BEEERE -

EEMIRITERIES KA TRITIAE
RAEAEEMEZRITREZFR - B
BERRTEFDRERNERREE
& AMIIRERBEE °
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(LB IC7HE)
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. B 5 B JCAb REA R I
The Group The Company
rEE RAH
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF —ETLF ZETRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiEx FHT TER FHAT
Trade creditors R E SRR 311 1,893 - -
Other creditors and H A e [ BRK
accrued charges R EFT RIS 5,151 14,742 1,260 401
Amount due to the ultimate FE{ SAF2R
holding company RNAIFIA
(note 30(b)) (Fft+E 30(b)) 6 - - -
Amount due to arelated  Eff—REERA A
company (note 30(b)) 38 (M 30(0)) 2,489 - - =
Financial liabilities KA
measured at amortised 51|82 B 75
cost =l 7,957 16,635 1,260 401
Retentions payable FEH IREB 5K 1,809 2,040 - =
Deposits received BiiEe 1,791 3,630 - -
11,557 22,305 1,260 401
All of the trade and other payables, apart from the retentions MRIEMRERIEIN TEESNEM
payable, are expected to be settled within one year. FEERIBEAR —FRZAT ©
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with REGMEMEMNEERN  BNES
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: REREE R 2RI
The Group
REEH
2007 2006
—EELF ZTER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Within 1 month —@ALT 108 30
After 1 month but within 3 months —fAR&ETER=EA 5 10
After 3 months but within 6 months = EAR®%BETEAEAR 20 16
After 6 months but within 12 months NEARETNERT=EA 34 15
Over 1 year —FLE 144 1,822
311 1,893
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(LB ICHHE)
22. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED 22. BYTATX o I
At 31 December 2007, the secured bank borrowings were RZEZE+F+-_A=+—8 ' &
repayable as follows: HRERTTERAR A T HARERE -
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EEEF  ZEER
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 1 year or on demand as R—F RN E KR ER
classified under current liabilities ERARDER) - 81,891
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRETNRBBMRE - 22,745
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBTBARF 150,829 314,848
After 5 years FFE E - 58,641
After 1 year and classified under —FLAE
non-current liabilities (RERIERBEE) 150,829 396,234
150,829 478,125
At 31 December 2007, the bank facilities of certain R=ZZTZE+F+=ZA=+—H &F
subsidiaries were secured by: MEARZIRITRERER 3 FIHEE
o
i) fixed charges over certain of the Group's investment i) BRI 421E/4273,000,000% T(=
properties situated in Hong Kong with an T T N4F ¢ 1,989,000,000587T)
aggregate carrying value of HK$273,000,000 (2006: ZAEBETFMNRBEZIZREY
HK$1,989,000,000); ¥ 2 BT
i) fixed charges over certain of the Group's properties i) BRE #{E /129,919,000% T
situated in Singapore with an aggregate carrying value (ZZ2ZRF : @|IZ2AEBET
of HK$129,919,000 (2006: nil). LRI 2 RV 2 B EH
i
i) assignment of insurance, sale and rental proceeds of i) HEEE PN BB R INE 2
the aforementioned properties situated in Hong Kong XZ2RkE - HERBESMER
and Singapore; 18 ;
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED
(CONTINUED)

iv)  charges over certain of the Group's bank balances of
HK$10,000 (2006: HK$912,000);

v) subordination and assignment of intra-group
and shareholders’ loans to certain wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Group in favour of the banks;

vi)  floating charges over the assets of Super Homes
Limited (“SHL"), a subsidiary of the Group;

vii)  share mortgages over the entire issued share capital of
SHL; and

viii)  corporate guarantees given by the Company.

At 31 December 2007, the effective interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings range from 3.7% to 4.47%
(2006: 4.86% to 6.14%) per annum. The floating interest
rates will be repriced within six months at the balance sheet
date.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

22.

23.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

BATAE K > A ()

iv) AEBEZETRITET10,00087T
(ZZEZ /N4 : 912,000/87T) 2
HEHF

V) RROARBABEERRERT
AEEETE2EMBARZRR
ESRARERER TAEE

vi)  Super Homes Limited ([SHL )
(REEKBAR) 2EEZZE
R

vii)  BLSHLZ 2B 2 HITRA 2 I
HH R

viii)  ANRFMEL 2 A BHELR o

RZZEZE+F+A=1+—8 " &%
BRI X B ZRITEEZERFEN
TREFEITEELLATE(ZZEEN i-
486EZE6.14[E) o EBFIEKR
HENMEARNTEHNETE

I3 Btk OB it =

AEERBEEBBHMEATESFEE
PIERBERERBGDEESEENER
ZEEHITARBERTESE B ([52H
HREEFE]) - BEERTEFE
RABIRFEAETEZ REHRZRK
rEl- REARTEAESTE EE
kEERARLEEEHMKVAZL%A
ZatElft R EEARBEBALRR
20,0008 7T ° %7t 8] 2 LR TH BN 58
= o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTRTHE)

24. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 24. DB XA Z B B AR 5
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>
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TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 15 April 2002 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options at nil consideration to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The options vest from
the date of grant and are then exercisable within a period of
not more than ten years. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The number and weighted average exercise price of share

ARABRE-—BER-_ZTZT_FMA
THBRAZ BRETE B R
N ESERENERFASEES
(REAEEAMARZES) EME
it (RIRE) AREARRRMD
BERERLEARER  E1TZR
TEZHEBRAT TIT6E - FHERE
MTIREARE-—RARALTERZ
RER o

BRE 2 BB RN HITEENT -

options are as follows:

2007 2006
—E2TLHF ZZEETR
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price  Number of price Number of
TnEF13 options INEEN options
TEE BREHRE TE(E  EEREHAE
‘000 ‘000
T T
Outstanding at the
beginning of the year EYIARITE  HK$0.377 53,040 HK$0.377 53,040
Cancelled during the year FRNFEH HK$0.377 (53,040) - -
Outstanding at the end
of the year FRARITE - - HK$0.377 53,040
Exercisable at the end
of the year FRAITE - - HK$0.377 53,040

R-EERE+-_A=+—HB KT
2 EBRETEER0.377 /8T » Mg
T FGEHNFIALIF o

The options outstanding at 31 December 2006 had an
exercise price of HK$0.377 and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 5.3 years.

BER-_ZZLFRA-THETZ
AAREFEERLBBZ —HRE
B R_ZZTELFRATNBZEH
ARITEBBAEE TIAGESH -

By a resolution passed at the meeting of the board of
directors of the Company held on 20 June 2007, all of the
options outstanding at 18 June 2007 were cancelled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 25. BARAMKRNZIIHB
a) Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet a) HMEEEBERAZAEHIE
represents:
2007 2006
S = L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FAT
Tax recoverable for the payment of & B S H:
provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax 2 AJ 4k [EI 418 8 83
Balance of Singapore Income IREE SR DI PSR B s
Tax provision for the year 2 AERR 856 -
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S For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE

= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

& (LUBTERHE)

g

; 25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 25. HEAMBNZ PGB (H)

g (CONTINUED)

A

W]g b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) OHERZIERBLIIEE E KA
ﬁ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EEAEBERANEERELES
§ recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the B(EE)BBEZERS RFERE
a/u movements during the year are as follows: R

The Group
KEE

Depreciation

Fair value allowances

adjustment for in excess of

Revaluation properties the related
of  heldforsale  depreciation

investment BEHE BB

property  MIEZAYE HEZITE Tax losses Total
RENZEER i R HEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL THR TEL TAxL
Deferred tax arising from: ~ TSIRERELZ
RITHA -
At 1 January 2006 RZEZ 5—FA—H 247,050 - 1,970 (2,379) 246,641
Charged/(credited) to BaRAk/
profit or loss G2N) 3,650 - (1,970) 2,379 4,059
At31December 2006  RZETHRF
+-A=1+—8 250,700 - - - 250,700
At 1 January 2007 R-EEt5-A—H 250,700 - - - 250,700
Through acquisition of BRlE
subsidiaries ENG - 5,588 - - 5,588
Distribution in specie ENDik (251,790) - - - (251,790)
Exchange alignment B i s - 275 - - 275
Charged/(credited) to profit R MG,/
or loss FA) 1,530 (617) - - 1,013
At 31 December 2007 RIZRLE
+-A=1+-H 440 5,346 - - 5,786
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

25. WEARGRMNZ B (8)

(CONTINUED)
b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b)  THE R N HE B e K A
(Continued) (%)
The Group
rEEH
2007 2006
—EBEELFE CBTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
Net deferred tax liabilities HMEEERRRN
recognised on the consolidated R IEIERIIE
balance sheet BEFE 5,786 250,700

)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

@

(i)

The Group

In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(qg), at 31 December 2007, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$281,638,000 (2006:
HK$625,693,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the tax losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and for the respective entity. The tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

The Company

At 31 December 2007, the Company has
cumulative tax losses of HK$11,832,000 (2006:
HK$10,630,000) available for set-off against
future taxable profits for an unlimited period of
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such cumulative tax losses as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and such
tax losses are subject to the agreement with the
tax authority.

©)  RHERZIERBIEH E

@

(i1)

L]
RIRMTEE1 () AT 2 & 51K
T RZZTZELE+=A
=t+—8 ' AEEILEF
281,638,000/ 7L (=%
7N £ ¢ 625,693,000 7T )
Z R RMEBBREREL
MBEE BAREEBAZ
B asERAMHERE
BE M & 1K A BE AR 2R fE 2R
it v A AT B) PR A B 48 -
BEBERITRIE AR ZF
FiIE BB AR FIER o

Ko Al
R=ZZEZT+LF+=A
=+t—H  Aaaq#
R RER B R A 2
ERBARGREERS
11,832,000/ 8 (= ZFZ /<
£ :10,630,000/870) ° &
HZERAHIBEEER
EEHBEE  BAREHR
2o i ¥ AV A N NE
B R 2R FE SR B A1 °T B B
MIEEE BZSEHIEE
BEGHREERRE &
AEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 26. A B
a)  The Group a) AREH
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KNAREREARE
Capital Share-hased
redemption compensation Minority

Share Share reserve  Contributed reserve  Exchange  Faivalue  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium B aupls  MRARA resene  resene profts Total Uit equity
RE  BAEE  BERE  HARR  CBERE  ENRE  LTERR  REEY &t hEg s
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000
Tén T Thn Tn Tn Tin TEn TEn Tén Tén T
At 1 January 2006 R-ERE-A-H 74620 196,873 il 618,098 891 (14377 519 9%71% 1692560 - 1,692,560

Echange diferenceon &9
translaton of fnancil B

tatements of BRRRL

oerseassibsideres  EREE - - - - - (162) = - (162 - (162
Changes nfarvalue IS

of avalabledor- HLTE

sale seouies 59 - - - - - - 260 - 260 - 260
Share of it

movements in el

feserves ofan ERe9

assooite = = = = = 41,047 8 = 41,100 = 41,100
Profit fo the year ERAA - - - - - - - TR05R 180532 - 150532
At31 December e

2006 t2fz1-8 74620 196,873 Iyl 618,098 8911 10289) 8 10877 188429 - 188429
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26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 26. A KAl ()
a)  The Group (Continued) a) KM (40)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAAREREARE
Capital Share-based
redemption compensation Minority
Share Share  reserve Contributed  reserve  Exchange  Fairvalue  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium 5 suplis JAREZH  reseve  reseve  profts Total DE O equity

b5 BfER BORE  MARR LMGHE ERGE OVERR REM & BRER %R
Note  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00
We  TEr TR TR TEm  TEr  TEn AR TAn  TER T TR

At 1 January 2007 A-E3tE-A-H 7460 196813 1 6180%8 891 (10289 832 1087727 1884290 - 188290
Eichange diferenceon &80

transitionof frenciel ~~ HEA

statoments of overseas RS HRL

subsifares EXzE - - = - - 5 - - Bl - B
Changeinfairvalueof A&

avaleble-forsele EH0TE

seourties pi £ - - - - - - 30 - 30 - 30
Share of movementsin  JEISEE

resenes O anassooigte  AAEEEE) - - - - -6 5 - b5 -6
Cancelltionof share.~~ ZFSARIVAE

premium - (19687) - 1%87 = = = - - - -

Redlisation ofreserve upon REAIA K

dsrbuioninspece  EERER - - - - - B 627 (102400) - - -
Shees issted SikENE
for acquistion AdEf
of subsidares b0} 45000 - - 350 - - - - TE - T
Cancellaionof iiEhE
share options - - - - (8aM) - - 8911 - - -
Loss for the year E5FR - - - - - - - B (31220) - B0
Distibuionnspece ~ EAAT 10 - - - (119747 - - - B%BeTE (1,731040) - (1731047
At31 Decemoer 2007 RZERLE
i 119620 - il - - 11,876 60 148392 280649 - 280649
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TLFHE)

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

26. WA B fili il (40)

b) The Company b) AAH
Capital Share-based
redemption compensation
Share Share reserve  Contributed reserve  Accumulated
capital  premium =GN surplus DRGSR losses Total
& RHRE file SRR ZHEEG ZitFE a3t
Note HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
fiit TEn ThR Tin TEn ThR TEn TERL
At 1 January 2006 R=FErE-A-R 74,620 196,873 12 1,386,571 8,911 (18,068 1,649,028
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - (441) (441)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEAETA=T-H 74,620 196,873 12 1,386,571 8,911 (18,509) 1,648,587
At1 January 2007 R-EE+E-A-A 74,620 196,873 2 1,386,571 8,91 (18,509 1,648,587
Cancelation of share options SRR - - - - 8911) 8911 -
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (136548 (136,545)
Share issued for acquisition SREHELR
of subsidiaries oWl 45,000 - - 382,500 - - 427500
Cancelation of share premium ~ E#R(EE - (196,873) - 196,673 - - -
Distribution in specie ENAR 10 - - - (1,731,047) - - (1,731,047)
At31 December 2007 REREETZA=1-H 119620 - 121 234,897 - (146,143) 2084%
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LI#TL7HE)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 26. A KAl ()
¢)  Share capital c) A
i) Authorised and issued share capital i) BEERCETRAE
2007 2006
—ETtE ZETRE
No. of shares No. of shares
RIEE B!
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR T#x T THT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of SAREME0.05
HK$0.05 each AL LRk 3,000,000 150,000 2,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued and L@ BB
fully paid: RER
At 1 January R—A—H 1,492,411 74,620 1,492,411 74,620
Shares issued for HUEEHBAR
acquisition of Bz RM
subsidiaries 900,000 45,000 - -
At 31 December ®+=R=1+-H 2,392,411 119,620 1,492,411 74,620
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TRBREAARRERT
receive dividends as declared from time to RERZKRE  BEARR
time and are entitled to one vote per share at AEE L BRAIE—RR
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares RE-AETAREAR
rank equally with regard to the Company's AIZRBEEZRRSHE
residual assets. @ °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

<)

Share capital (Continued)

ii)

iii)

Increase in authorised share capital

By an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 25 July 2007, the
Company's authorised ordinary share capital was
increased to HK$150,000,000 by the creation
of an additional 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each, ranking pari passu with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.

Shares issued for the acquisition of subsidiaries

On 1 August 2007, the Company issued
900,000,000 new shares as part of the
consideration payable for the acquisition of
subsidiaries as set out in note 31.

26. WA B fili il (40)

o A (&)

11)

jii)

% E A

ERR-_ZZTLF+LA
—t+HEBBRTRER
RlAE @Bz ERR
BR AQRBZAEEE
IR AN B iR KSR Ah
1,000,000,000 i% EAX FI{E
0.05 /8 7t 2 & 3 A% M & on
Z%150,000,000/87C ' %%
TEBRAES A EEARA A
ZEALETERZEREM

fir °

BRI G 2 ] B 77.2 IR 17
R=ZFEZEtFNA—H"
7K/ A)2£17900,000,000%
ik tEEB KB
B AR (K31 Fral) /e
NREZ—HD -

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at iv) AT HRIRAKLT
the balance sheet date HIRTEZ (kK
Exercise 2007 2006
price TETLFE —TEREF
17E(E Number Number
BT #A £
Exercise period 1T ER
18 January 2005 e e AN
to 14 April 2012 E-T-—FA+MEA 0.377 - 53,040,000




Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

c) Share capital (Continued)

v)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
the balance sheet date (Continued)

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further

details of these options are set out in note 24.

d) Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by
the Bermuda Companies Act.

By a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 25 July 2007, the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 25 July
2007 was cancelled. The credit arising from
the cancellation of share premium was applied
for the purpose of the distribution in specie as
disclosed in note 10.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of
the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in

certain circumstances.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll cqtE)
26. A B i (#)
o Bk (ED)
iv)  TEEIEH A EI R AT
SHIEREZ B (A1)

BNBRERTHAEAR
BARA —REBRZE
Mo REBBEZE—S
FBEENHE24 -

d) R RS

i)

1i)

RO i 187 B S I [ ff
& 17 4 (8 BR 2 & 7K fE 8] &
B2 ERZBEREARE
o
EBRR_ZZTLtFtA
—+REARITZRERR
AELRABZENRE
X RZZTZELFLA
Z+RAAXRRRRMDEE
Rz 2EPERET T A
5 o B wE $H AR 10 5 (B T 2
EZERTRIEMTE10FT
HEZENDIK

A B
REEHARBIEARRF
B BEITRA Z HE 8 AR
BB AR ZRAREKN
HBERBEIER - RE
BRZ-NAN\—FRADE
(EFT)  ARARET
FEETAMEKERE S
LA RER
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

iii)

iv)

v)

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of a subsidiary recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments set out in note 1(p)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in notes 1(f) and (j).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount

of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$88,754,000
(2006: HK$1,368,062,000).

26. A B i (4)
Bl Y T 0 (480

d)

e)

i)

iv)

v)

LUR 3 31 2 Bl

VAR S 2 B 85 o i
FRPFEE 1(p) (i1) FTERELARR
D RRRN 2 &5 R HE
RZET-—HNBARIE
B iH R AT 2 P B R
HEFTEEZATE -

HE S fif
EXREESmAERRE
BINEBRBERRELEZ
FENER - iFBIRMEE
(0 PrE SRR -

L FAE R
RAFEFEEEREER
REZAHRHEESAF
Bz RREFE KW
aE 1(f) B () P 2 & RTBGR
BRIR o

43 W fif Al

RZZET+tF+=-A=+—8"
ADEFARAIEEZE A2
i #8%8 588,754,000 L (=&
T4 ¢ 1,368,062,00087T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

f

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital
ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables) less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of
equity.

During 2007, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2006, was to maintain the net debt-
to-capital ratio at the below 60%.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

26. WA B filifli (410)

f)

YA A

AEEEREAZERZARIR
RSB HERRBRELE
HELE  URERERBRAKF
HEZEmMRBEBARES
BERAZBE  BERKRRA
B3R e A E A AR R T RA

o

)

REBERKEHEEAREE
TR RER  AERSKRERE
HBEATARFEZERSEER
KR R A B AR R 2 4 5
KR8 2 FEIBUAS F 18 - 30 A
BEREBEZBICHEARBELT

#=® o

FE AR FIE G — 5 NI
FREHEARLRAEEERA
BARRE - BILAREE 2 ERF
BRABH(BRAEERRE
5 BEZREMEMNERER)RE
RekReEEMHE - EXE
EHBRARKSD °

—ETLEFR - ANEEZEKE
—EERERANE  ER
BERFREHEAR L FKN60% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TLFHE)

26. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 26. B Ko fili il (%)
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f)  Capital management (Continued) f)  HAREEL(H)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2007 and RZBELFRZTEAF =
2006 was as follows: R=+—BzEBFEHEARL
R
The Group The Company
AEE NG|
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
oz “EELF ZETRE “ETtE “ETERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTHET THx THT
Current liabilities: MEERE:
Trade and other payables B REMEMNESR 21 11,557 22,305 1,260 401
Bank borrowings HFTEE 22 - 81,891 - =
11,557 104,196 1,260 401
Non-current liabilities: FnBEE:
Bank borrowings HFAEE 22 150,829 396,234 - =
Loan from a fellow RZHEAR
subsidiary Rt ZER 302 - - =
Total debt EEE 162,688 500,430 1,260 401
Less: Cash and cash B ReERBREE
equivalents B9 20 (5,485) (4,342) 7 (12)
Net debt BB HER 157,203 496,088 1,253 389
Capital BHEAR 26 280,649 1,884,290 208,495 1,648,687
Net debt-to-capital ratio BT RBEER
BALE 56% 26% 1% -
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RQ T HE MM E R B HEA
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. ZHNESE Mo 2 B AR EFTARR ©

128




Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. These risks are
mitigated by the Group's financial management policies and
practices described below.

a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group grants a
credit period of not more than 30 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset, after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 19.

27.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Ll TaE)

S TR

EE RBESEMNEXRBIIELRS
BRBLEFBEPES - ZERR
TREBRTHAREE Z M BERBEK R
BT F ARE -

a) AR
rEEZEERREIZAESIR
Hip R BRAES - EXEEC
ERRZEEBRE  WHZER
ERBIFERE -

HESREMEKREMS @ #
BHERBLETSEZREEZ
BRETEETE - AEERT
EEHT AR RS B30
H-@f=FEAREBERELE
WABE BB AREERERS
ARTE—FEE - ~EEBE
TRERE F R o

AEEEHZEERREEZS
BEPZERFUEMTE - TP
EMETEMER ZENRR
THEERRETE  BXER
ERE - AEEYEERNEFE
ERR  MEBRZIHRIZE
o

EREZERBAFA 2 ERERRE
AT - BRAREERRTEHRE
MRERERSASREE 2K
E{E ° AEEIL TR HEAER
MBE R EBH AR R HARE
EmkE -

BERAKERE S & E M EKE
BffEE 2 EERRZE—TE
EREENENME 19
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
and the Company's financial liabilities which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can
be required to pay:

27. 4T H (4])

b)

it B 25 4 L B
REBRENSEERETAEER
ERFCHEERE  BENAR
HRASETEHREREERS
FTABRMNEFREE R *5E
FIFTBRAEHERERDES
FERREEBETHRERHNZIER -
HmBERAER 7 EIR & kR E
TRIMBARRERHES - N
ENEESHRRBAzZRBHEERSS
e

TRFAMAEERARRE 2 S/
BERBERZHTANIH
B DREAORTHRSRE
(BREREHNXRFEZFE
R HMBFBA X - AER
BERZMNEGFE) URAKE
RARRAEREEREZ &FH Y
FC

s
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. &R T H (4)
(CONTINUED)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b)  GREyYE S MLBE (4])
The Group
188
2007 2006
CERLE ERE
More than Maore than
Total More than 2years Total Maore than 2years
contractual ~ Within1 1 year but but less contractual Within 1 1 year but hut less
Canrying undiscounted ~ yearoron less than than Canying undiscounted ~~ yearoron~ less than thand  More than
amount  cash flow demand 2years years amount  cash flow demand 2years years 5years
2k S
fige - -ENLE CENLE biElEa By ENHE ZENLE

FEE  REAB  AREX  OMEE  OREF BEE  RESE  aEERx OMRF JnEfE REk
HKOOD  HKSO0  HKSOD  HKSOM0  HKODO  HKODD  HKOOO  HKOD KOO HKOBD  HKOND
TEn  fEn  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEm TR Ter  TEn

Bank borrowings i 150,829 (167,974) 6,535) (33.282)  (128167) 478125 (659781)  (104491) (43007 (346,1%) (66,087)
Credtors and BRI

accrued charges 9,062 (9,062) (1.253) - (1,809) 2,305 22.308) (20,265) - (2040 -
Amount due tothe utimate  JEREEAR

hoding company DR b (6} (6} - - = = - - - -
Amount e o EREEATSE

related compénies 2489 (2489) 2489) - - - = = = = -
Loanfrom A%-FhEL

felow subsidary YAE 3 (358) (1) (1) (336) > = = - - -

162688 (179889) (16294 (33293  (130302) 500430  (GG2086)  (124756) (4300 (3482360 (66,087)
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= (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
& (LU TR )
B
5
c 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. ST H (4)
g (CONTINUED)
&
Wﬁ? b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) GRS MLBE ()
B
ay
= The Company
“ 27
2007 2006
-2ELE e
Total Total
contractual Within 1 contractual Within 1
Carrying  undiscounted year or on Carrying  undiscounted year or on
amount cash flow demand amount cash flow demand
BHEFM BHARI —FR
REE ReR2EE -FRFREXR REE RensER REX
HK'000 HK'000 HK’000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
Tir TEx TEL THL THT T
Creditors and FERTHRS R B R
accrued charges 1,260 (1,260) (1,260) 401 (401) (401)
¢) Interest rate risk c) AR
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from ANE B 2 M = £ 2 EE
non-current loan receivable, bank borrowings and BVEAE R - |RITEER—HER R
loan from a fellow subsidiary. The interest rates and MBARRHZERMELE - &
maturity information of the Group’s non-current loan SEZEWSERNEAE X « R1T71E
receivable, bank borrowings and loan from the fellow ErRRRZMBARREREZERZ
subsidiary are disclosed in notes 17, 22 and 30(b)(ii) FI R & B BRIE 0 5 Bl 4% 58 04 B 7
respectively. 17 ~ 22 } 30(b)(ii) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1 percentage point in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group's result after tax and
retained profits by approximately HK$259,000 (2006:
HK$3,832,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. For variable-rate borrowings,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. The 1 percentage
point increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2006.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

27. T H (4])

©)

AU B8 (49)
R_EZLF+_A=+—8 "
TEFT A E 4 T E B 3= # 55 T &
ZERT - EEEEBME R
BIEABSHEKSAEE 2R
18 S48 AR B om AR 2 1 N
#9259,0008 T ( ZZE T X F ¢
3,832,000/ 7T) °

L BREE DM THRRA KB
RNGEERZLEMETE - YO
AZAFEZITERIFITE SR
TRZAERER - SLFBHEE
EME  ZomHRKRREER
ZABEABESREREFRE
BEBMIEL o BN 1 {E
BOMKKREEBHMERAR
BEETEFEAERQENLE
B2th o ZEERFZAN
RIBAREEETT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2007 and 2006.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments set out in note 27(d) above.

i) Securities
Fair value for the unquoted equity investments
are estimated using the applicable fair value
measurement of the relevant assets and
liabilities of the investee.

ii)  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

27. 4T H (4])

d)

AVl
FASBIALREAR - 2F
EER-EEAFT A=+
AZAFELMEAZR U
BIfE -

A

AT

AT B 3 £ SCHEE27 ()BT
N2z SBTAATFENHERZ
BB ERBE -

1) e
ABEBLZEZFREZRTF
ENRAKREAZEBE
ERBBZERRATER
fl&t e

i)  ATEEAREE
AEEDRAEUSHET
B REHISHERRZ
KRB @ nE 2 BEMET -
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(LB IC7HE)
28. COMMITMENTS 28. 7RI
a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December a) HMBBRERPRTERERN-ZZ
2007 not provided for in the financial statements were tFEF+ZA=+—HREEZE
as follows: AT -
2007 2006
—ETEF ZEERX
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Contracted for =EES) 7,381 13,498
b) At 31 December 2007, the total future minimum lease by RZTZTLF+-_A=+—8"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in EAMAEMERRAERHEZ
respect of office properties and office equipment are DA BEH LA IE T 2 AR IRFE
payable as follows: NREHEEREEOT :
The Group as lessee AL EEABE A
2007 2006
ZEBEELFE CBTRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FATT
Within 1 year —F AR 2,833 2,744
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEUBEBEERFARN 1,115 3,798
3,948 6,542
Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and EHEARERENERB RFE
buildings classified as being held under finance leases HEMEzERATHRIEFZE
and properties held for sale are described in notes 13 AEERHHNIMFT 13218 °
and 18.
Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in RZEEEIN  REBEREIAR
respect of a number of properties held under operating BEERNTAE 2MEZENA
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of A ZEMREZNRFHEBES
one to three years, with an option to renew the lease —E=F  TEESENEEAME
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases IRRIBEL - ZEHERMERS
includes contingent rentals. HAMER ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

28. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. 7RI (40)

c) The Group leased out investment property and c) ARERBLEHEOLBEREY
properties held for sale under operating leases. The RRFAEHEZME 151
leases typically run for an initial period of one to two HARR EMT  FMREA
years, with an option to renew the lease after that BRI E B AR -
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease TRFEFETERIRRTS
payments are usually reviewed every year to reflect MEKF - BEBE R
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent & e
rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would FIAREREEROBFALF SR
otherwise meet the definition of investment property BEMEXERZNXBERRIEY
are classified as investment property. x-
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments AR BRET A HEHL SR .2
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable AREBREHSABLOT -
as follows:
The Group as lessor AEEERLHEA
2007 2006
—2ZLF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within 1 year —FLAR 928 6,437
After 1 year but within 5 years —FAERAFUA 325 =
1,253 6,437
d) At 31 December 2007, the Company had no material d RZEE+F+-_A=+—H

commitments.

NN AR A B R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

29. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

30.

a)

b)

At 31 December 2007, the Company had given
unconditional guarantees to banks to secure loan
facilities made available to certain subsidiaries to the
extent of approximately HK$237 million (2006: HK$658
million). The extent of such facilities utilized by the
subsidiaries at the balance sheet date amounted to
approximately HK$151 million (2006: HK$478 million).

At 31 December 2007, the Company had given
corporate guarantees to a bank for issuing letters
of indemnity to third parties in respect of contracts
undertaken by a subsidiary amounted to approximately
HK$268,000 (2006: HK$402,000).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

a)

Key management personnel remuneration

All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for
them is disclosed in note 7.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)

29. AR E R

a)

R=ZZEZtF+=-A=+—8"
N ) B A SR AT IR A R
R UAERETHE QAL
237,000,000/ 7T (=BT /R 4F -
658,000,000 7T) ZEERE °
REER - MBRARESHARZRS
BRE A %151,000,0008 (==
/N4 478,000,000 7T) °

R-_EELF+_A=+—8"
RAABBHBITRA—HERBEL
AFTEAREZEARME=2%H
REK - MERITIEL R A ERA
268,000 (= & & X F:
402,00077T) °

30. HEPHEA LR

a)

BEAAAA B4
EHEIEERABRY/ARAE
= HEMeRBERMET:
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

30. HEBBALZY (H)

b)  Financing arrangements b) R
Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to Related interest
related parties related parties (expenses)/income
As at As at Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
EBAL IR BEALTRR HEERIE () WA
R+t=BA=t+-H R+t=B=t—-B #ET-A=+-HLEFE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELFE ZTESNE CEELE ZRTAF CETHE  ZETSF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TER AT TET BT TR TAT
Due to a related e — PR A IR
company (i - - 2,489 - - -
Due to the ultimate JE T BRI AR
holding company INGE e (i - - 6 = - =
Loan from a fellow JEY R 2RI
subsidiary DRIZER (il - - 302 - (2) =
Loan to a fellow BTRZ RSB
subsidiary DRIZER (i), (i) 54 = - = - =
Loan to a director of AT —RNEAR
a subsidiary EZVEN (i), (iv) 490 990 - = 39 61
Notes: B 5

ii)

The outstanding balances with these related parties are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment terms.
The amounts owed to related parties are included in “Trade
and other payables” (note 21) and the amount owed by a
related party are included in “other non — current financial

assets” (note 17).

The loan from a fellow subsidiary is generally non-trade in
nature, unsecured and settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future. Interest incurred by
the fellow subsidiary on bank borrowings taken to provide
financing to this subsidiary is charged to the Company based
on utilisation of funds by the subsidiary. The effective interest
rate ranges from approximately 3.0% to 5.8% per annum. The
interest rates will be repriced within six months of the balance
sheet date.

ii)

ZEMBA L2 REEBEHRTE
ER - T EREEEERY -
EREE A T 2 RIETIFEA TR
5 R EAMRENRROE] (HiFE21)
M BAEE A £ RARBIGEA [ E s 3E
MBI BEEI(HFE17) -

RR—HEHBARREZER—
REIFEHMEE - IR BE
EERTE - HAKRAIAERAIER
HERMEE - RIRKTE D 7 EER
RITEE LAMZHTE 2 AR R
BMELEZFISBERRALN -
TREZHEARERES2E
RETHE o BEMENTREFLH
3.0% E£5.8% ° FEGREHER
RENEAANEFETE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b)

c)

Financing arrangements (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

iii)

iv)

No provision for bad or doubtful debts has been made in
respect of these loans.

Further details of the loan to this individual, being a director of
a subsidiary, are disclosed in note 17.

Details of new loans and loans repaid during the period

are disclosed in the cash flow statement.

Other related party transactions

i)

iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group acquired the entire interest in the
Goldease Group from HFC. Further details of this
transaction are disclosed in note 31.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group paid management fee of approximately
HK$2.7 million (2006: Nil) to the HF Land Group
for share of administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group paid to fellow subsidiaries for an amount
of approximately HK$327,000 (2006: Nil) for

share of office expenses.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TL7HE)

30. WEPHEALRY (4])

b)

©)

¥ K B ()

FEE

iii)

HAFIEE RN EEES

(&)

I £ 3h 72 5 B R AE H RIE R
1

BRBETIAL(BI—FHMBR

R ER) 2 BRz#E—FHFE
TR BRI E17 ©

BERZHF

BIHEBERASRER °

JU Al B 2 22 5

i)

ii)

iii)

REBEE=ZZTZTLHF+=
A=Z+—BLEEER-
REBRBREEXEKE
Elircag= ¥
o BEAWIER S 2 #
FERBER M3 -

Goldeasef

REBEEZZTTLE+=A
=t+t—HLEEE A58
D EITHAZmAHF
Landﬁgfiﬁﬁfﬁ!ﬁg’?’]
2,700,000 T (= ZF X
F:E)o

RBE-ZZtF+=A
zwL—ElJtiJg F REE

DAEP A EF = mEE
%Mff%f&ﬂiﬁﬂﬂzﬁﬂfz
#9327,0008 L (ZZTE X
F:F)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll TaHE)

31. GROUP REORGANIZATION AND
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

a)

Group reorganization

During the year, the Group underwent a reorganization
(the “Group Reorganization”), details of which are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 30 June 2007 and
which was completed on 1 August 2007. Pursuant to
the Group Reorganization, the Company distributed of
all the ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each held by it in
the issued share capital of Hong Fok Land International
Limited (“HF Land"”), a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and which was then a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company before 1
August 2007, in specie out of its credit arising from the
Company’s retained profits and contributed surplus
to the equity shareholders of the Company whose
names appeared on the Register of Members of the
Company at the close of business day on 25 July 2007
on a one for one basis. The assets of HF Land include
an approximate 20.2% interest in HFC.

Subsequent to the Group Reorganization:

(i) the Company continues to be a listed company
and the Group excluding the HF Land Group
continues carrying on the businesses which
include the Group's property related businesses,
including the holding of the redevelopment
project at 38 Conduit Road in Hong Kong, and the
provision of horticultural services;

31. A 1T AL R oo B I 2 vl

a)

e 30
FRNAERETEH(ER
FEH] BEFBERHNRAA A
RZBEZLFAA=THEHEZ
BN MEBSHAER=ZE
+tENA—BEK - BESE
FH ARAIRENELEERE
RMEARRBRB BN RBAR
BRELEZHER MR-_ZZTLF
tAZ+ R RS ERHEERRESR
1NN §E 20 el VNI 3
HREAEMH KR Hong Fok
Land International Limited ([ HF
Landl) (—FR B FEFMAL
ZERRAR RZZTEZLFN\A
— AR AARAZEZERBA
A ZBETRAFREMBEREZ
FTAEEBRMEECSE L LB
% e HF Land 2 EEBER SR
BEE420.2% 2 S o

REBEAR

RAEBEERET AR
REE (TEIEHF Land &
E) MBI e e RER
HpBERNER 2R
BEB(BEREEETE
B38IREREIAR ) RiRHt
B AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

31. GROUP REORGANIZATION AND
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

31, A 1 oA B O B )R 2 vl ()

a)

Group reorganization (Continued)

ii)

iii)

the HF Land Group continues carrying on the
businesses which includes the Group's previous

a) SR (&)

i)

HF LandSEEEBELE R
B EReELASE

holding of the properties at 15 and 17 Magazine ERFERBHSIIBKE
Gap Road in Hong Kong, certain properties in 15 R175R 2% - AP E
the PRC and an approximately 20.2% interest in ZETMERNBREESE

HFC, the Group’s previous associate; and

the HF Land’s shares were distributed in specie
to the Company’s shareholders whose names
appeared on the Register of Members of the
Company at the close of business day on 25 July
2007 on the basis of one HF Land share for each
of the Company's shares held.

iii)

=
#4920.2% 2R &

HF Land®kHh 2 E %
EKTR_ZZEZTLF LA
T f B R A R
BIIAR R BRI AE M 2 A
RAEIRER RERETRE
1 RA A BIIR D DK 1 AR
HF Land f&{7 °

§%
1
g
7
3
s
N
A
ev.
#
i
£

WO B )5 2 )

BIBRE N EEEE X (R BB
HAKRRRZHERA])FIMNZ
AEBRGREEZWE
Goldease & &7 100% J&#E - X
BE M UAR S - K RIE
i [F) 96 18 & 3£ %17 900,000,000
AR R L BRIt
BIBBEERBADE 2 HIEIE
/NI

b) Acquisition of subsidiaries b)
Pursuant to an agreement entered into with HFC,
an associate of the Company at the date of the
agreement, during the year, the Group acquired the % % -
100% equity interest in the Goldease Group from HFC.
The consideration was settled partly in cash and partly
by the issue of 900 million new ordinary shares of the
Company to HFC after which the latter became the
ultimate holding company of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LI#TLFHE)

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. WORBHE A ) (4)

(CONTINUED)

& Goldease EE 2 23l i A SE
EEENABBEZZENT ¢

The acquisition of the entire interest in the Goldease Group
had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities:
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Carrying Carrying
values prior Fair value values upon
to acquisition adjustments acquisition
WEERAREE ATERE WEEEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT THET THET
Acquiree’s net assets at USRI AU S
the date of acquisition Az EEFE
Fixed assets EE&E 642 = 642
Property held for sale RIELE2ME 133,123 31,041 164,164
Trade and other receivables B 5 K Bt FE K AR IR 1,671 - 1,671
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR eEEY 10,847 = 10,847
Trade and other payables B 5 REMFERIRIE (3,540) - (3,540)
Tax payables eI (812) - (812)
Amount due to the ultimate JER SR AIE IR A RIFRIR
holding company (6) = (6)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAA R - (5,588) (5,588)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (37,009) - (37,009)
Net assets acquired P « BEEFME 104,916 25,453 130,369
Goodwill (note 14) P (Mt 14) 321,122
451,491
Satisfied by: FAEV-E
— Cash consideration —BHeRE 23,991
- 900 million new shares —900,000,000 &%
of the Company (note) RARFRAD (PFE) 427,500
451,491
Net outflow of cash and cash BERBEMBLARZES
equivalents in respect of the RESEEYRLFRE
acquisition of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration ReNE 23,991
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o FTiE R e &
acquired BeEEY (10,847)
Net outflow of cash and cash ReRREeEFEY
equivalents TR 13,144
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32.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Note: As part of the consideration for the acquisition of the Goldease Group,

900 million new ordinary shares of the Company with par value
of HK$0.05 each were issued. The fair value of these 900 million
ordinary shares of the Company, determined using the published price
available at the date of the acquisition, amounted to HK$427,500,000.

The Goldease Group’s loss of approximately HK$402,000
since the date of acquisition included in the Group's loss for
the period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2007,
the Group's total revenue for the period would have
been HK$89,201,000 and loss for the period would have
been HK$289,456,000. This pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in disclosures in the current year and to show
separately comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in the year ended 31 December
2007. Further details of these developments are disclosed in
note 2.

31.

32.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

WU i e 28 ] (28)

MiE : fEAKEGoldease EEREZ — &
% + N2 A E %47 900,000,000 A% & A%
EE0.05B T 2 A AR L BAR - 3%
900,000,000 R A A &) i AR 2 A F1E
TYHRARKERAE A2 BREE ' A
427,500,000 7T °

Goldease £ B W HLARE £ EE
#9402,000 770 B 5t AN & B 7 5% 2
pd %=

BN =TT +F—A—HZEK - &
E BN %A 2 #UA FE 589,201,000
78 JT &5 18 i /5289,456,000 745 T ©
HEBMEEHARLE - WABAM
WER_ETLtF—A—HEKEE
EEREER LS RMABRERE 28
T~ INIEEIARIREEAE 2 TEAR o

W ¥y

RAERMEEM B RELEANETHR [
BMTE: BRI REEGFENFE
HIMBHRRZ2S) : BARE] 2&
R BETHRBFEMHELED - AR
BAFREZEEEZS YRBE—F
ELFE+ A=+ —HLEFEBHRHR
PIEBERBEFIRLREE - A
WEEH 2 E - THBHRERKE
20

143

§%
>
g
7
3
N
e
(0
=
=
e




§%
=
5
g
®
&
§
o
g
e
AR
HE
=)
B
a}
bt
>
al

144

Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;%E ~EE-LEF —H=—+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTRTHE)

33.

34.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2007, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Company to be
HFL International Consortium Limited, which is incorporated
in Cayman Islands with limited liability, and Hong Fok
Corporation Limited, which is incorporated with limited
liability and listed in the Republic of Singapore, respectively.
The immediate parent company does not produce financial
statements available for public use while the ultimate
controlling party produces financial statements for public

use.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13, 14, and 27 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
investment properties, goodwill impairment and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

are as follows:

33.

34.

L B dp # PRI A L

W_ZEE+E+_A=+—H =&
ERAF/ ARAIZEERRRAI K&
IR AL D BIAHFL International
Consortium Limited (FAF £ & &£
Rz BRAR) REREXFRAA
(PAFR DR A0 B T Bk 37 I 72 & 4 1=
M2 BRAR) - BEEG QTN EE
AIMARERAZ P B®EK - MEKE
RATRIRRERARGEA 2P EHRE

ot ftwt KR B

AR AT R B R 22 3 AR

BIFE13 ~ 14 R 27 HII BRAREME
B BEREREBRTAZEREE
RERZZER - Htfhc T #ER
FEZEERIRMN ¢



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3% Fi ik

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #;F —~EE-L4EF —H =—+—HILFEE

34. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

b)

¢

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value at the balance sheet date. Net
realizable value is determined on the basis of the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The directors estimate the
net realizable value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
In addition, the directors perform an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at each year end date
and assess the need for write down of inventories.

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would
affect profit or loss in future years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTHTHE)

34. kAt 2O i (80

A wh AN R B R 2 A AR ()

a)

b)

c)

vreE

ME - BE &R ERE B EEER
BERZGEFIRFHAEREE
FE - AEEEFRAMEZT
RERREFBRE(WHE) - {8
EHFHHIREREE  RRDAM
ZHERBHERAS AT AE -

FEIEE

FERRGEER ZRARFEHR
BEZREZEIIR - FRBETIR
BEEREERETHE ZEHAL
ERAETE - EEZRRTFEZF
BRETBRBEROCERER
MRERTRERE ° I EFR
BEEFREBREMETFER
L WAHEMETFEZRE -

REBERE D RIEE S HREK
D2 EE KA E T2 R
EEITREE MR H - EF R
BUBATPZEEBERBHE
WK RD BRI B 1E 2 1B FI H © R
R ER 2 EIERE T ER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Ll Ta1E)

34. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

d)

Impairment losses for goodwill

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed by the Group at each balance sheet date to
assess whether there is any indication that goodwill
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the goodwill is estimated.
Changes in facts and circumstances may result in
revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of
recoverable amounts, which would affect profit or loss
in future years.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried
forward are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. In determining the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions
relating to the operating environment of the Group
and requires significant level of judgement exercised
by the directors. Any change in such assumptions
and judgement would affect the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets to be recognised and hence the net
profit in future years.
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35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2007 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results

of operations and financial position.

In addition, HKFRS 8, Operating segments, which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009, may result in new or amended disclosures in the
financial statements.

3s.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB TTRTHE)
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Group Properties 45 BE )¢

Particulars of the Group’s major properties held for sale or for AEER-_ZEZT+F+-_A=+—HZEEZE
investment as at 31 December 2007 are as follows: RERESIREMEBAT ¢

Properties held for sale Al R
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Percentage
Gross floor area interest attributable

sq. m. to the Group
Location Existing Use RS R IREEE(L R
b 2 RIE AR T K Batk
4 units of ten@suffolk at Residential 427 100%
Suffolk Road, Singapore F=E
EAIWIIE:
10 units of Jewel of Balmoral Residential 1,351 100%
at Balmoral Park, Singapore F=E
EAIWIIES

Properties held for investment Tl G %
Location Existing Use Term of lease
HhE RIE AR HAFH
38 Conduit Road, Hong Kong Residential premises redevelopment Long term
BBETEEI8H commenced in 2006
HERZEEME R NFRAEE =
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